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Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.

Yes o No x

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.

Yes o No x

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (229.405 of this chapter) is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference
in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. x

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer, See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer x Non-accelerated filer o

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).

Yes o No x

As of December 31, 2007, 11,765,037 shares of the Company's capital stock par value $1.25 were outstanding, and the aggregate market value
of the common stock (based upon the average of bid and ask price according to Company records) on June 30, 2007 of Kansas City Life
Insurance Company held by non-affiliates was approximately $182,745,010.

Explanatory Note
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This Amendment No. 1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A is being filed in order to correct the previously issued
Annual Report on Form 10-K as initially filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008.

The revisions contained in this Amendment No. 1 are as follows:

Exhibit 23, Form 10-K contains an updated Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm due to
corrections as identified below in Exhibit 31 (a), Exhibit 31 (b), and Exhibit 32 (a).

Exhibit 31 (a), Form 10-K Section 302 Certification has been amended to include a conformed signature that was
previously omitted.

Exhibit 31 (b), Form 10-K Section 302 Certification has been amended to include a conformed signature that was
previously omitted.

Exhibit 32 (a), Form 10-K Section 1350 Certification has been amended to include conformed signatures that
were previously omitted.
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PART I

Item 1. BUSINESS

Kansas City Life Insurance Company (the Company) was incorporated under the assessment laws of Missouri in 1895 as the Bankers Life
Association. In 1900, its present corporate title was adopted and it was reorganized as a legal reserve company in 1903.

The Company primarily consists of three insurance companies: Kansas City Life Insurance Company (Kansas City Life) the parent company,
and wholly owned subsidiaries Sunset Life Insurance Company of America (Sunset Life) and Old American Insurance Company (Old
American). The Company also has several non-insurance subsidiaries that individually are not material.

Kansas City Life markets its individual insurance products, including traditional, interest sensitive and variable products through a nationwide
sales force of independent general agents and third-party marketing arrangements. Kansas City Life also markets group insurance products,
which include life, dental, vision and disability products through a nationwide sales force of independent general agents, group brokers and
third-party marketing arrangements. Kansas City Life operates in 48 states and the District of Columbia.

Sunset Life’s individual insurance products include traditional and interest sensitive products. Sunset Life’s marketing, administrative and
accounting operations have been integrated with Kansas City Life’s to improve efficiency and effectiveness. Sunset Life continues as a life
insurance company with its current block of business, but without new sales. Sunset Life operates in 43 states and the District of Columbia.

Old American sells final expense insurance products nationwide through its general agency system, with exclusive territories, using direct
response marketing to supply agents with leads. Old American operates and maintains a separate and independent field force. To support the
unique needs of this field force, Old American maintains a separate and distinct sales and marketing function, while other operational activities
have been integrated with Kansas City Life’s to improve efficiency and effectiveness. Old American operates in 46 states and the District of
Columbia.

The Company has three reportable business segments: Individual Insurance, Group Insurance and Old American. The Individual Insurance
segment consists of individual insurance products for both Kansas City Life and Sunset Life. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the
Individual segment generated approximately 55% of consolidated customer revenues. Also during 2007, the Group Insurance segment and the
Old American segment accounted for 19% and 26% of consolidated revenues from customers, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to state regulations in their states of domicile and in the states in which they do business. Although
the federal government generally does not regulate the business of insurance, federal initiatives often have an impact on the business in a variety
of ways, including the taxation of insurance companies and the tax treatment of insurance products. In addition, the Company is a stock life
insurance company and is subject to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
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The Company and its subsidiaries had 527 full-time employees as of December 31, 2007. The Company considers relations with its employees
to be good.

The Company operates in the life insurance sector of the financial services industry in the United States. The industry is highly competitive with
respect to pricing, selection of products and quality of service. No single competitor or any small group of competitors dominate any of the
markets in which the Company operates.

Access to Public Filings

The Company provides access to its annual report on Form 10-K, and will provide access as they become available during the year for all
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) under the 1934 Act, free of charge. These documents may be accessed on the Company’s website at the following address:
http://www.kclife.com and will be provided as soon as is practicable after filing with the SEC, although not always on the same day. They may
also be found on the SEC’s website athttp://www.sec.gov.

-4-
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Item 1A.RISK FACTORS AND CAUTIONARY FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

The operating results of life insurance companies have historically been subject to significant fluctuations. The factors which could affect the
Company’s future results include, but are not limited to, general economic conditions and the known trends and uncertainties which are discussed
more fully below.

The Company operates in a mature, highly competitive industry, which could limit its ability to grow sales or maintain its position in the
industry and negatively affect profitability.

Life insurance is a mature and highly competitive industry. In recent years, the industry has experienced little growth in life insurance sales,
though the aging population has increased the demand for retirement savings products. The Company encounters significant competition in all
lines of business from other insurance companies, many of which have greater financial resources, a greater market share, a broader range of
products, lower product prices, better name recognition, policyholder service, perceived financial strength, claims-paying ratings, the ability to
assume a greater level of risk, lower operating or financing costs, or lower profitability expectations.

Changes in the business environment and competition could negatively affect the Company’s ability to maintain or increase its profitability.

In recent years, there has been substantial consolidation and convergence among companies in the financial services industry, resulting in
increased competition from large, well-capitalized financial services firms. Furthermore, many of these larger competitors may have lower
operating costs and an ability to absorb greater risk while maintaining their financial strength ratings, thereby allowing them to price their
products more competitively. The Company expects consolidation to continue, thereby increasing competitive pressures.

Changes in demographics, particularly the aging of the population and the decline in the number of agents in the industry, affect the demand for
life insurance products. Also, as technology evolves, customers and agents may be able to compare products of any particular company with any
other, which could lead to increased competition as well as changes in agent or customer behavior, including persistency that differs from past
behavior.

The Company may be unable to attract agencies and sales representatives.

The Company sells insurance and annuity products through independent agents and agencies. These agencies and sales representatives are not
captive and may sell products of the Company’s competitors.The Company’s ability to compete is dependent upon, among other things, its ability
to attract and retain agents and agencies to market its insurance products, its ability to develop competitive and profitable products, its ability to
maintain low unit costs, and its maintenance of strong ratings from rating agencies. Sales and the results of operations and financial condition
could be adversely affected if the Company is unsuccessful in attracting and retaining agencies and sales representatives.

The Company’s ability to maintain competitive unit costs is dependent upon the level of new sales.
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The Company’s ability to maintain competitive unit costs is dependent upon a number of factors, such as the level of new sales, persistency
(continuation or renewal) of existing business, and expense management. A decrease in sales or the amount of total existing business without a
corresponding reduction in expenses may result in higher unit costs, which would affect the Company’s operating results.

The Company’s ability to grow depends in large part upon the continued availability of capital.

The Company deploys significant amounts of capital to support its sales and acquisitions efforts. Although the Company believes it has
sufficient capital to fund its immediate growth and capital needs, the amount of capital available could vary in the future due to a variety of
circumstances, some of which are neither predictable nor foreseeable, nor within the Company’s control. A lack of sufficient capital could impair
the Company’s ability to grow.

-5-
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The Company may be unable to complete additional acquisitions.

One of the Company’s growth strategies is to acquire other life insurance companies and/or blocks of business. The Company’s acquisitions have
increased its earnings by allowing the Company to position itself to realize certain operating efficiencies or increase sales. There can be no
assurance, however, that suitable acquisitions that present opportunities for continued growth and operating efficiencies will continue to be
available to the Company. Further, sufficient capital to fund acquisitions may not be available at the time opportunities become available.

The Company may not realize its anticipated financial results from its acquisitions.

The completion of an acquisition may be more costly or take longer than expected. There may be unforeseen liabilities that arise in connection
with businesses that the Company acquires. Additionally, in connection with its acquisitions, the Company assumes or otherwise becomes
responsible for the obligations of policies and other liabilities of other insurers. Any regulatory, legal, financial, or other adverse development
affecting the other insurer could also have an adverse effect on the Company.

The Company’s policy claims fluctuate from period to period, resulting in earnings volatility.

The Company’s financial results may fluctuate from period to period due to fluctuations in policy claims incurred by the Company. The
Company reinsures a significant amount of the mortality risk on fully underwritten and newly issued, individual life insurance contracts. The
Company regularly reviews retention limits for continued appropriateness and they may be changed in the future. If the Company was to
experience adverse mortality or morbidity experience, a significant portion of that expense would be reimbursed by reinsurers.

Significant adverse mortality experience may result in the loss of, or higher prices for, reinsurance.

Prolonged or severe adverse mortality or morbidity experience could result in increased reinsurance costs, and ultimately, reinsurers not willing
to offer coverage. If the Company was unable to maintain its current level of reinsurance or purchase new reinsurance protection in amounts that
are considered sufficient, the Company would either have to be willing to accept an increase in net exposures or revise pricing to reflect higher
reinsurance premiums. If this were to occur, the Company may be exposed to reduced profitability and cash flow strain or may not be able to
price new business at competitive rates.

The Company’s results may be negatively affected should actual experience differ from management’s assumptions and estimates.

In the conduct of business, the Company makes certain assumptions regarding the mortality, persistency, expenses, interest rates, tax liability,
business mix, or other factors appropriate to the type of business it expects to experience in future periods. These assumptions are also used to
estimate the amounts of deferred policy acquisition costs, policy reserves and accruals, future earnings, and various components of the
Company’s balance sheet. These assumptions are used in the operations of the Company’s business in making decisions crucial to the success of
the Company, including the pricing of products and expense structures relating to products. The Company’s actual experience, as well as changes
in estimates are used to prepare the Company’s income statements. To the extent the Company’s actual experience varies from period to period,
deviations in our financial statement will result.
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The Company’s reserves for future policy benefits may prove to be inadequate.

The Company establishes and carries, as a liability, reserves based on estimates of how much will be needed to pay for future benefits and
claims. The assumptions and estimates used in connection with establishing and carrying reserves are inherently uncertain. If actual experience
is significantly different from assumptions or estimates, reserves may prove to be inadequate in relation to estimated future benefits and claims.
As a result, a charge to earnings would be incurred in the quarter in which the Company increases reserves.

Assumptions and estimates involve judgment and are subject to changes and revision over time.

The calculations the Company uses to estimate various components of its balance sheet and statements of income are necessarily complex and
involve analyzing and interpreting large quantities of data. The Company currently employs various techniques for such calculations and it from
time to time will develop and implement more sophisticated systems and procedures capable of facilitating the calculation of more precise
estimates. Accordingly, the Company’s results may be affected, positively or negatively, from time to time, by actual

-6-
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results differing from assumptions, by changes in estimates, and by changes resulting from implementing more sophisticated administrative
systems and procedures that facilitate the calculation of more precise estimates.

The Company’s reinsurers could fail to meet assumed obligations, increase rates or be subject to adverse

developments that could affect the Company.

The Company follows the insurance practice of reinsuring a portion of the risks under the policies written by the Company (known as ceding).
The Company cedes material amounts of insurance to other insurance companies through reinsurance. This reinsurance makes the assuming
reinsurer liable to the Company for the reinsured portion of the risk. However, reinsurance does not discharge the Company from its primary
obligation to pay policyholders for losses insured under the policies that are issued. Therefore, the failure of one or more of the Company’s
reinsurers could negatively impact the Company’s earnings and financial position.

The Company’s ability to compete is dependent on the availability of reinsurance or other substitute capital market solutions.

Premium rates charged by the Company are based, in part, on the assumption that reinsurance will be available at a certain cost. Under certain
reinsurance agreements, the reinsurer may increase the rate it charges the Company for the reinsurance. Therefore, if the cost of reinsurance
were to increase or if reinsurance were to become unavailable or if alternatives to reinsurance were not available to the Company, the Company
could be adversely affected.

Recently, access to reinsurance has become more costly for the Company, as well as the insurance industry in general. In recent years, the
number of life reinsurers has decreased as the reinsurance industry has consolidated. The decreased number of participants in the life reinsurance
market results in increased concentration risk for insurers, including the Company. If the reinsurance market further contracts, the Company’s
ability to continue to offer its products on terms favorable to the Company could be adversely impacted.

The use of reinsurance introduces variability in the Company’s income statements.

The timing of premium payments to and receipt of expense allowances from reinsurers may differ from the Company’s receipt of customer
premium payments and incurrence of expenses. These timing differences introduce variability in certain components of the Company’s income
statements.

The Company’s investments are subject to market and credit risks.

The Company’s invested assets, primarily including fixed income securities, are subject to customary risks of credit defaults and changes in
market values. The value of the Company’s commercial mortgage loan and real estate portfolios also depend on the financial condition of the
tenants occupying the properties which the Company has financed. Factors that may affect the overall default rate on, and market value of, the
Company’s invested assets includes interest rate levels, financial market performance, and general economic conditions, as well as particular
circumstances affecting the businesses of individual borrowers and tenants.
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Interest rate fluctuations could negatively affect the Company’s spread income or otherwise impact its business.

Because the profitability of fixed annuity and interest-sensitive whole life, universal life and fixed portion of variable universal life insurance
business depends in part on interest rate spreads, interest rate fluctuations could negatively affect profitability. Changes in interest rates may
reduce both the profitability from spread businesses and the return on invested capital.

Some of the Company’s products, principally fixed annuities and interest-sensitive whole life, universal life and the fixed portion of variable
universal life insurance, have interest rate guarantees that expose the Company to the risk that changes in interest rates will reduce the “spread,” or
the difference between the amounts the Company is required to credit to policyholders under contracts and the amounts earned by the Company
on general account investments. Declines in spread or instances where the returns on the general account investments are not sufficient to
support the interest rate guarantees on these products could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations. In periods of increasing
interest rates, the Company may not be able to replace the assets in the general account with higher yielding assets needed to fund the higher
crediting rates that may be necessary to keep interest sensitive products competitive. The Company, therefore, may have to accept a lower spread
and profitability or face a decline in sales and loss of existing contracts from non-renewed maturities or early withdrawals or surrenders. In
periods of declining interest rates, the Company has to reinvest the cash received from interest or return of principal on investments in lower
yielding

                                                                                          -7-
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instruments then available. Moreover, issuers of fixed-income securities and borrowers may prepay these obligations in order to borrow at lower
market rates, which exacerbates the risk for the Company of having to reinvest at lower rates.

The Company is entitled to reset the interest rates on fixed-rate annuities but only at limited, pre-established intervals. Because many of the
Company’s policies have guaranteed minimum interest or crediting rates. Because many of the Company’s policies have guaranteed minimum
interest or credit rates, spreads could decrease and potentially become negative. Increases in interest rates may cause increased surrenders and
withdrawals of insurance products. In periods of increasing interest rates, policy loans and surrenders and withdrawals of life insurance policies
and annuity contracts may increase as policyholders seek to buy products with higher returns. These outflows may require investment assets to
be sold at a time when the prices of those assets are lower because of the increase in market interest rates, which may result in realized
investment losses.

Changes in interest rates may also impact the business in other ways. Lower interest rates may result in lower sales of certain of the Company’s
insurance products. Higher interest rates may create a less favorable environment for the origination of mortgage loans. Higher interest rates may
also result in lower sales of variable products.

While the Company develops and maintains asset/liability management programs and procedures designed to mitigate the effect on spread
income in rising or falling interest rate environments, no assurance can be given that changes in interest rates will not affect such spreads.
Additionally, the Company’s asset/liability management programs incorporate assumptions about the relationship between short-term and
long-term interest rates (i.e., the slope of the yield curve) and relationships between risk-adjusted and risk-free interest rates, market liquidity,
policyholder behavior in periods of changing interest rates and other factors. The effectiveness of the Company’s asset/liability management
programs and procedures may be negatively affected whenever actual results differ from these assumptions.

The Company could be forced to sell investments at a loss to cover policyholder withdrawals.

Many of the products offered by the Company allow policyholders and contract holders to withdraw their funds under defined circumstances.
The Company manages liabilities and configures the investment portfolio so as to provide and maintain sufficient liquidity to support anticipated
withdrawal demands and contract benefits and maturities. While the Company owns a significant amount of liquid assets, a certain portion of
investment assets are relatively illiquid. If the Company experiences unanticipated withdrawal or surrender activity, the Company could exhaust
all other sources of liquidity and be forced to liquidate other assets, perhaps on unfavorable terms. If the Company is forced to dispose of assets
on unfavorable terms, it could have an adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition.

Equity market volatility could negatively impact the Company’s business.

The amount of policy fees received from variable products is affected by the performance of the equity markets, increasing or decreasing as
markets rise or fall. Equity market volatility can also affect the profitability of variable products in other ways, in particular as a result of options
embedded in these products.

The amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs relating to variable products and the estimated cost of providing guaranteed minimum
death benefits incorporate various assumptions about the overall performance of equity markets over certain time periods. The rate of
amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and the estimated cost of providing guaranteed minimum death benefits could increase if equity
market performance is worse than assumed.
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Computer viruses or network security breaches could affect the data processing systems of the Company or its business partners and could
damage business and adversely affect financial condition and results of operations.

A computer virus could affect the data processing systems of the Company or its business partners, destroying valuable data or making it
difficult to conduct business. In addition, despite the Company’s implementation of network security measures, its servers could be subject to
physical and electronic break-ins, and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering with its computer systems. The Company retains
confidential information in its computer systems, and relies on sophisticated commercial technologies to maintain the security of those systems.
Anyone who is able to circumvent the Company’s security measures and penetrate the Company’s computer systems could access, view,
misappropriate, alter, or delete any information in the systems, including personally identifiable customer information and proprietary business
information. In addition, an increasing number of states require that customers be notified if a security breach results in the disclosure of
personally identifiable customer information. Any compromise of the security of the Company’s
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computer systems that results in inappropriate disclosure of personally identifiable customer information could damage the Company’s reputation
in the marketplace, deter people from purchasing the Company’s products, subject the Company to significant civil and criminal liability and
require the Company to incur significant technical, legal and other expenses.

Insurance companies are highly regulated and subject to numerous legal restrictions and regulations.

The Company is subject to government regulation in each of the states in which business is conducted. Such regulation is vested in state
agencies having broad administrative and in, some instances, discretionary power dealing with many aspects of the Company’s business. This
may include, among other things, premium rates and increases thereto, reserve requirements, marketing practices, advertising, privacy, policy
forms, reinsurance reserve requirements, acquisitions, mergers, and capital adequacy. Government regulation of insurers is concerned primarily
with the protection of policyholders and other customers rather than share owners. Interpretations of regulations by regulators may change and
statutes, regulations and interpretations may be applied with retroactive impact, particularly in areas such as accounting or reserve requirements.

At the federal level, bills have been introduced in the U. S. Senate and the U. S. House of Representatives that would provide for an optional
federal charter for life and property and casualty insurers, and another bill has been introduced in the U. S. House of Representatives that would
pre-empt state law in certain respects with regard to the regulation of reinsurance. Still another bill has been introduced in the House and Senate
that would remove the federal antitrust exemption from the insurance industry. The Company cannot predict whether or in what manner reforms
will be enacted and, if so, whether the enacted reforms will positively or negatively affect the Company or whether any effects will be material.
Moreover, although with respect to some financial regulations and guidelines, states defer to the interpretation of the insurance department of the
state of domicile, neither the action of the domiciliary state nor action of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) is
binding on a state. Accordingly, a state could choose to follow a different interpretation.

Other types of regulation that could affect the Company include insurance company investment laws and regulations, state statutory accounting
practices, anti-trust laws, minimum solvency requirements, state securities laws, federal privacy laws, insurable interest laws, federal money
laundering and anti-terrorism laws. Further, because the Company owns and operates real property, state, federal, and local environmental laws
could affect the Company. The Company cannot predict what form any future changes in these or other areas of regulation affecting the
insurance industry might take or what effect, if any, such proposals might have on the Company if enacted into law.

Publicly held companies in general and the financial services industry, in particular, are sometimes the target of law enforcement investigations
and the focus of increased regulatory scrutiny.

The financial services industry has become the focus of increased scrutiny by regulatory and law enforcement authorities relating to allegations
of improper special payments, price-fixing, bid-rigging and other alleged misconduct, including payments made by insurers and other financial
services providers to brokers and the practices surrounding the placement of insurance business and sales of other financial products.

New accounting rules or changes to existing accounting rules could negatively impact the Company.

Like all publicly traded companies, the Company is required to comply with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). A number of organizations are instrumental in the development and interpretation of GAAP, such as the SEC, the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB), the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA).
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GAAP is subject to constant review by these organizations and others in an effort to address emerging accounting rules and issue interpretative
accounting guidance on a continual basis. The Company can give no assurance that future changes to GAAP will not have a negative impact on
the Company.

In addition, the Company is required to comply with statutory accounting principles (SAP). SAP and various components of SAP (such as
statutory actuarial reserving methodology) are subject to constant review by the NAIC and its taskforces and committees as well as state
insurance departments to address emerging issues and otherwise improve or alter financial reporting. Various proposals are currently pending
before committees and taskforces of the NAIC, some of which, if enacted, would negatively affect the Company, and some of which could
positively impact the Company. The NAIC is also currently working to reform state regulation in various areas, including comprehensive
reforms relating to life insurance reserves and the accounting for such reserves. The Company cannot predict whether or in what manner reforms
will be enacted and, if so, whether the enacted reforms will positively or negatively affect the Company. Although, states generally defer to the
interpretation of the insurance department of the state of domicile with regards to
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regulations and guidelines, neither the action of the domiciliary state nor action of the NAIC is binding on a state. Accordingly, a state could
choose to follow a different interpretation. The Company can give no assurance that future changes to SAP or components of SAP will not have
a negative impact on the Company.

Changes to tax law or interpretations of existing tax law could adversely affect the Company and its ability to compete with non-insurance
products or reduce the demand for certain insurance products.

Under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), income tax payable by policyholders on investment earnings is deferred
during the accumulation period of certain life insurance and annuity products. This favorable tax treatment may give certain of the Company’s
products a competitive advantage over other non-insurance products. To the extent that the Code is revised to reduce the tax-deferred status of
life insurance and annuity products, or to increase the tax-deferred status of competing products, all life insurance companies, including the
Company, would be adversely affected with respect to their ability to sell such products. Further, depending upon grandfathering provisions, life
companies would be affected by the surrenders of existing annuity contracts and life insurance policies. Changes in tax law, which have reduced
the federal income tax rates on corporate dividends in certain circumstances, could make the tax advantages of investing in certain life insurance
or annuity products less attractive. Additionally, changes in tax law based on proposals to establish new tax advantaged retirement and life
savings plans, if enacted, could reduce the tax advantage of investing in certain life insurance or annuity products. The Company cannot predict
what changes to tax law or interpretations of existing tax law may ultimately be enacted or adopted or whether such changes could adversely
affect the Company.

A ratings downgrade could adversely affect the Company’s ability to compete and increase the number or value of policies surrendered.

The Company’s financial strength ratings, which are intended to measure its ability to meet policyholder obligations, are an important factor
affecting public confidence in most of the Company’s products and, as a result, the Company’s competitiveness. Rating organizations periodically
review the financial performance and condition of insurers, including the Company. In recent years, downgrades of insurance companies have
occurred with increasing frequency.

A downgrade in the Company’s rating could adversely affect the Company’s ability to sell its products, retain existing business, and compete for
attractive acquisition opportunities. Rating organizations assign ratings based upon several factors. While most of the factors relate to the rated
company, some of the factors relate to the views of the rating organization, general economic conditions and circumstances outside the rated
company’s control. In addition, rating organizations use various models and formulas to assess the strength of a rated company, and from time to
time rating organizations have, in their discretion, altered the models. Changes to the models could impact the rating organizations’ judgment of
the rating to be assigned to the rated company. The Company cannot predict what actions the rating organizations may take, or what actions the
Company may be required to take in response to the actions of the rating organizations, which could adversely affect the Company.

Financial services companies are frequently the targets of litigation, including class action litigation, which could result in substantial
judgments.

A number of civil jury verdicts have been returned against insurers, broker-dealers, and other providers of financial services involving sales or
claims practices, alleged agent misconduct, failure to properly supervise representatives, relationships with agents or other persons with whom
the insurer does business, and other matters. Often these lawsuits have resulted in the award of substantial judgments that are disproportionate to
the actual damages, including material amounts of punitive non-economic compensatory damages. In some states, juries, judges, and arbitrators
have substantial discretion in awarding punitive and non-economic compensatory damages, which creates the potential for unpredictable
material adverse judgments or awards in any given lawsuit or arbitration. Arbitration awards are subject to very limited appellate review. In
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addition, in some class actions and other lawsuits, companies have made material settlement payments.

The Company, like other financial services companies, in the ordinary course of business is involved in litigation and arbitration. Although the
Company cannot predict the outcome of any litigation or arbitration, the Company does not believe that any such outcome will have a material
impact on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

-10-
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The Company is exposed to the risks of natural disasters, pandemics, malicious and terrorist acts that could adversely affect the Company’s
operations.

While the Company has implemented risk management and contingency plans, and taken preventive measures and other precautions, no
predictions of specific scenarios can be made nor can assurance be given that there are not scenarios that could have an adverse effect on the
Company. A natural disaster, pandemic, or an outbreak of an easily communicable disease could adversely affect the mortality or morbidity
experience of the Company or its reinsurers. A pandemic could also have an adverse effect on lapses and surrenders of existing policies, as well
as sales of new policies. In addition, a pandemic could result in large areas being subject to quarantine, with the result that economic activity
slows or ceases, adversely affecting the marketing or administration of the Company’s business within such area and/or the general economic
climate. This, in turn, could have an adverse affect on the Company. The possible macroeconomic effects of a pandemic could also adversely
affect the Company’s asset portfolio, as well as many other variables.

The Company is dependent on the performance of others.

The Company’s results may be affected by the performance of others because the Company has entered into various arrangements involving
other parties. For example, most of the Company’s products are sold through independent distribution channels, and variable annuity deposits are
invested in funds managed by third parties. Additionally, the Company’s operations are dependent on various technologies, some of which are
provided by other parties.

As with all financial services companies, the Company’s ability to conduct business is dependent upon consumer confidence in the industry and
its products. Actions of competitors and financial difficulties of other companies in the industry could undermine consumer confidence and
adversely affect retention of existing business and future sales of the Company’s insurance and investment products.

Risk management policies and procedures may leave the Company exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risk, which could negatively affect
business or result in losses.

The Company has devoted significant resources to develop risk management policies and procedures and expects to continue to do so in the
future. Nonetheless, the Company’s policies and procedures used to identify, monitor and manage risks may not be fully effective. Many of the
methods of managing risk and exposures are based upon the use of observed historical market behavior or statistics based on historical models.
As a result, these methods may not predict future exposures, which could be significantly greater than the historical measures indicate, such as
the risk of pandemics causing a large number of deaths. Other risk management methods depend upon the evaluation of information regarding
markets, clients, catastrophe occurrence or other matters that are publicly available or otherwise accessible to us, which may not always be
accurate, complete, up-to-date or properly evaluated. Management of operational, legal and regulatory risks requires, among other things,
policies and procedures to record properly and verify a large number of transactions and events, and these policies and procedures may not be
fully effective. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known, or that the Company currently deems to be immaterial, may adversely
affect the business, financial condition and/or operating results.

Item 1B.UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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Item 2. PROPERTIES

The Company’s home office is located at 3520 Broadway in Kansas City, Missouri. The Company owns and wholly occupies two five-story
buildings on an eight-acre site.

The Company owns various other properties held for investment.

-11-
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The life insurance industry, including the Company and its subsidiaries, has been subject to an increase in litigation in recent years. Such
litigation has been pursued on behalf of purported classes of insurance purchasers, often questioning the conduct of insurers in the marketing of
their products.

In addition to the above, the Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in, or subject to, other claims or legal actions. Some of these claims
and legal actions are in jurisdictions where juries are given substantial latitude in assessing damages, including punitive damages. Although no
assurances can be given and no determinations can be made at this time, management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, with respect to
these other claims and legal actions would have no material effect on the Company’s business, results of operations or financial position.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

-12-

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

23



PART II

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Kansas City Life Insurance Company

3520 Broadway

Post Office Box 219139

Kansas City, Missouri 64121-9139

Telephone: (816) 753-7000

Fax: (816) 753-4902

Internet: http://www.kclife.com

E-mail: kclife@kclife.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held at 9 a.m. on Thursday, April 24, 2008 at Kansas City Life's corporate headquarters.

TRANSFER AGENT

Cheryl Keefer, Assistant Secretary

Kansas City Life Insurance Company

Post Office Box 219139

Kansas City, Missouri 64121-9139

10-K REQUEST
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Stockholders may request a free copy of Kansas City Life's Form 10-K, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, by writing to
Secretary, Kansas City Life Insurance Company.

SECURITY HOLDERS

As of January 31, 2008, Kansas City Life had approximately 2,500 security holders, including individual participants in security position
listings.

-13-
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STOCK AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

Stock Quotation Symbol

NASDAQ—KCLI

The following table presents the high and low prices for the Company’s common stock for the periods indicated and the dividends declared per
share during such periods.

Bid Dividend
High Low Paid

2007:
First quarter $ 52.28 $ 44.35 $ 2.27
Second quarter 47.95 44.61 0.27
Third quarter 50.79 38.18 0.27
Fourth quarter 50.48 40.00 0.27

$ 3.08
2006:
First quarter $ 53.04 $ 48.75 $ 0.27
Second quarter 51.27 41.57 0.27
Third quarter 46.08 41.82 0.27
Fourth quarter 58.97 44.36 0.27

$ 1.08

A quarterly dividend of $0.27 per share was paid February 12, 2008.

NASDAQ market quotations are compiled according to Company records and may reflect inter-dealer prices, without markup, markdown or
commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
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Item 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Revenues:
Insurance revenues $ 231,894 $ 235,264 $ 238,503 $ 250,111 $ 272,664
Net investment income 190,405 196,280 194,608 197,975 194,763
Realized investment gains
(losses) 5,426 5,621 6,113 45,929 (29,280)
Other revenues 11,499 11,349 10,312 8,468 9,387
Total revenues $ 439,224 $ 448,514 $ 449,536 $  502,483 $ 447,534

Net income $ 35,661 $ 36,918 $ 36,184 $ 57,687 $ 14,793

Per common share:
Net income, basic and
diluted $ 3.01 $ 3.11 $ 3.03 $ 4.83 $ 1.24

Cash dividends to
stockholders $ 3.08 $ 1.08 $ 1.08 $ 1.08 $ 1.08

Stockholders' equity $ 58.17 $ 57.72 $ 57.07 $ 58.00 $ 54.04

Assets $  4,352,108 $  4,457,795 $ 4,555,379 $ 4,662,724 $ 4,544,669
Notes payable 10,400 14,700 27,282 92,220 133,670
Stockholders' equity 684,401 684,304 680,219 692,896 644,438
Life insurance in force $      31,135,142 $       31,261,016 $       30,949,501 $       30,980,928 $ 32,216,624
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Item 7: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations analyzes the consolidated financial condition, changes
in financial position and results of operations for the three years ended December 31, 2007 of Kansas City Life Insurance Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries. The discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes. All dollar
amounts are in thousands except share data.

Overview

Kansas City Life Insurance Company (the Company) is a financial services company. The Company primarily consists of three life insurance
companies: Kansas City Life Insurance Company (Kansas City Life) the parent company, and wholly owned subsidiaries Sunset Life Insurance
Company of America (Sunset Life) and Old American Insurance Company (Old American).

Kansas City Life markets its individual insurance products, including traditional, interest sensitive and variable products through a nationwide
sales force of independent general agents and third-party marketing arrangements. Kansas City Life also markets group insurance products,
which include life, dental, vision and disability products through a nationwide sales force of independent general agents, group brokers and
third-party marketing arrangements. Kansas City Life operates in 48 states and the District of Columbia.

Sunset Life’s individual insurance products include traditional and interest sensitive products. Sunset Life’s marketing, administrative and
accounting operations have been integrated with Kansas City Life’s to improve efficiency and effectiveness. Sunset Life continues as a life
insurance company with its current block of business, but without new sales. Sunset Life operates in 43 states and the District of Columbia.

Old American sells final expense insurance products nationwide through its general agency system, with exclusive territories, using direct
response marketing to supply agents with leads. Old American operates and maintains a separate and independent field force. To support the
unique needs of this field force, Old American maintains a separate and distinct sales and marketing function, while other operational activities
have been integrated with Kansas City Life’s to improve efficiency and effectiveness. Old American operates in 46 states and the District of
Columbia.

The Company offers investment products and broker dealer services through its subsidiary Sunset Financial Services, Inc. (SFS) for both
proprietary and non-proprietary variable insurance products and mutual funds.

Business Changes

On January 23, 2006 the Company entered into a definitive agreement to sell its bank subsidiary, Generations Bank, for $10.1 million in cash to
Brooke Corporation. On January 8, 2007, the Company completed the sale of Generations Bank after receiving regulatory approval from the
Office of Thrift Supervision. The gain on the sale was $1.9 million and is included in realized investment gains. The bank subsidiary and the
results of operations were not material to the financial statements of the Company and are not disclosed separately.
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In 2006 the Company entered into a Master General Agent and Marketing Agreement with American Republic Insurance Company (American
Republic) under which American Republic agents market Kansas City Life’s insurance products. For segment reporting purposes, sales under this
agreement are reflected in the Individual Insurance segment.

Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Information

This report reviews the Company’s financial condition and results of operations, and historical information is presented and discussed. Where
appropriate, factors that may affect future financial performance are also identified and discussed. Certain statements made in this report include
“forward-looking statements” that fall within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements
include any statement that may predict, forecast, indicate or imply future results, performance or achievements rather than historical facts and
may contain words like “believe,” “expect,” “estimate,” “project,” “forecast,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “will,” “shall,” and other words, phrases or expressions with
similar meaning.
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Forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause the Company’s future results to differ materially
from expected results include, but are not limited to:

• Changes in general economic conditions, including the performance of financial markets and interest rates;

• Increasing competition and changes in consumer behavior, which may affect the Company’s ability to sell its products and retain
business;

• Customer and agent response to new products, distribution channels and marketing initiatives;

• Fluctuations in experience regarding current mortality, morbidity, persistency and interest rates relative to expected amounts used in
pricing the Company’s products;

• Changes in assumptions related to deferred acquisition costs and the value of business acquired;

• Regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or the demand for, the Company’s products or services;

• Unanticipated changes in industry trends and ratings assigned by nationally recognized rating organizations.

The Company cannot give assurances that such statements will prove to be correct. Given these risks and uncertainties, investors should not
place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual results.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The accounting policies below have been identified as critical to the understanding of the results of operations and financial position. The
application of these critical accounting policies in preparing the financial statements requires management to use a variety of assumptions and
estimates, in particular expectations of current and future mortality, morbidity, persistency, expenses, interest rates and equity market
performance. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The profitability of life insurance and
annuity products is dependent on actual experience and differences between actual experience and pricing assumptions may result in variability
of net income in amounts which may be material. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates the estimates, assumptions and judgments based
on historical experience and various other information that the Company believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. A detailed
discussion of other significant accounting policies is provided in Note 1- Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recognition of Revenues

Premiums are included in insurance revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Premiums for traditional life insurance products are
reported as revenue when due. Traditional insurance products include whole life, term life, immediate annuities and supplementary contracts
with life contingencies.

Premiums on accident and health, disability and dental insurance are reported as earned ratably over the contract period in proportion to the
amount of insurance protection provided. A reserve is provided for the portion of premiums written which relates to unexpired terms of
coverage.
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Deposits relate to insurance products that include universal life, variable life, variable annuities, fixed deferred annuities, annuities and
supplemental contracts without life contingencies. The cash flows from deposits are credited to policyholder account balances. Deposits are not
recorded as revenue, but revenues from such contracts consist of amounts assessed against policyholder account balances for mortality, policy
administration and surrender charges, and are recognized in the period in which the services are provided. Deposits are shown as a Financing
Activity in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The Company measures its sales or new business production with two components: new premiums recorded and new deposits received.
Premiums and deposits are subdivided into two categories: new and renewal. New premiums and deposits are measures of sales or new business
production. Renewal premiums and deposits occur as continuing business from existing customers.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance is one of the tools that the Company uses to accomplish its business objectives. A variety of reinsurance vehicles are currently in
use, including individual and bulk arrangements on both coinsurance and mortality/morbidity only basis. Reinsurance supports a multitude of
corporate objectives, including managing statutory capital, reducing volatility and surplus strain. At the customer level, reinsurance increases the
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Company’s capacity, provides access to additional underwriting expertise, and generally makes it possible for the Company to offer products at
competitive levels that could not otherwise be made available. Reinsurance is an actively managed tool that has increased in importance over
recent years and will continue to play a role in the Company’s future. Reinsurance receivables include amounts related to paid benefits and
estimated amounts related to unpaid policy and contract claims, future policy benefits and policyholder account balances.

Future Policy Benefits

The Company establishes liabilities for amounts payable under insurance policies, including traditional life insurance, annuities and accident and
health insurance. Generally, amounts are payable over an extended period of time. Principal assumptions used in pricing policies and in the
establishment of liabilities for future policy benefits are mortality, morbidity, expenses, persistency, investment returns and inflation.

Policyholder Account Balances

Policyholder account balances include universal life insurance, fixed deferred annuity contracts and investment-type contracts. The account
balances for universal life contracts are equal to cumulative premiums, less contract charges and withdrawals, plus interest credited. The account
balances for fixed deferred annuities and investment-type contracts are equal to the cumulative deposits, less any applicable contract charges and
withdrawals, plus interest credited.

Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC) and Value of Business Acquired (VOBA)

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC), principally agent commissions and other selling, selection and issue costs, which vary with and are directly
related to the production of new business, are capitalized as incurred. These deferred costs are then amortized in proportion to future premium
revenues or the expected future profits of the business, depending upon the type of product.

When a new block of business is acquired, a portion of the purchase price is allocated to a separately identifiable intangible asset, called the
value of business acquired (VOBA). VOBA is established as the actuarially determined present value of future gross profits of the business
acquired and is amortized in proportion to future premium revenues or the expected future profits, depending on the type of business acquired.

The Company considers the following assumptions to be of significance when evaluating the amortization of DAC and VOBA: expected
mortality, interest spreads, surrender rates and expense margins. Mortality relates to the occurrence of death. Interest spreads are the difference
between the investment returns earned and the crediting rates of interest applied to policyholder account balances. Surrender rates relate to the
relative volume of policy terminations. Expense margins involve the expenses incurred for maintaining and servicing in-force policies.

At least annually, a review is performed of the models and the assumptions used to develop expected future profits, based upon management’s
current view of future events. DAC is reviewed on an ongoing basis to determine that the unamortized portion does not exceed the expected
recoverable amounts. Management’s view primarily reflects Company experience but can also reflect emerging trends within the industry.
Short-term deviations in experience affect the amortization of DAC and VOBA in the period, but do not necessarily indicate that a change to the
long-term assumptions of future experience is warranted. If it is determined that it is appropriate to change the long-term assumptions of future
experience, then an unlocking adjustment is recognized for the block of business being evaluated. Certain assumptions, such as interest spreads
and surrender rates, may be interrelated. As such, unlocking adjustments often reflect revisions to multiple assumptions. The balances of DAC
and VOBA are immediately impacted by any assumption changes, with the change reflected through the income statement as an unlocking
adjustment in the amount of DAC or VOBA amortized. These adjustments can be positive or negative. The impact of unlocking adjustments
from the changes in estimates for the periods reported are included in the sections Consolidated Results of Operations and Operating Results by
Segment.
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The following table reflects the estimated pre-tax impact to DAC and VOBA on universal life, variable universal life, and fixed and variable
deferred annuity products; that could occur in a given year for an unlocking adjustment due to reasonably likely changes in significant
assumptions. Changes in assumptions of the same magnitude in the opposite direction would have an impact of a similar magnitude but opposite
direction of the examples provided.
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Critical Accounting
Estimate

Determination Methodology Potential One-time Effect on DAC, VOBA
and Related Items

Mortality Experience Based on Company mortality experience.
Industry experience and trends are also
considered.

A 2.5% increase in expected mortality
experience for all future years would result in
a reduction in DAC and VOBA, and an
increase in current period amortization
expense of $4.6 million.

Surrender Rates Based on Company surrender experience.
Industry experience and trends are also
considered.

A 10% increase in expected surrender rates
for all future years would result in a reduction
in DAC and VOBA, and an increase in
current period amortization expense of $2.3
million.

Interest Spreads Based on expected future investment
returns and expected future crediting rates
applied to policyholder account balances;
future crediting rates include constraints
imposed by policy guarantees.

A 10 basis point reduction in future interest
rate spreads would result in a reduction in
DAC and VOBA, and an increase in current
period amortization expense of $3.9 million.

Maintenance Expenses Based on Company experience using an
internal expense allocation methodology.

A 10% increase in future maintenance
expenses would result in a reduction in DAC
and VOBA, and an increase in current period
amortization expense of $2.5 million.

Valuation of Investments

The Company’s principal investments are in fixed maturity securities, mortgage loans and real estate; all of which are exposed to three primary
sources of investment risk: credit, interest rate and liquidity. The fixed maturity securities, which are all classified as available for sale, are
carried at their fair value in the Company’s balance sheet, with unrealized gains or losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss net.
The unrealized gains or losses are also recorded net of the adjustment to policyholder account balances to reflect what would have been earned
had those gains been realized and the proceeds reinvested. The Company’s fair value of fixed maturity and equity securities are derived from
external pricing sources, brokers, and internal matrices. Approximately 94% of these investments are from external pricing services while 6%
are derived from brokers and internal matrices. The investment portfolio is monitored regularly to ensure that investments which may be other
than temporarily impaired are identified in a timely fashion and properly valued, and that impairments are charged against earnings as realized
investment losses. The valuation of the investment portfolio involves a variety of assumptions and estimates, especially for investments that are
not actively traded. Fair values are obtained from a variety of external sources.

The Company has a policy and process in place to identify securities that could potentially have an impairment that is other-than-temporary.
This process involves monitoring market events that could impact issuers’ credit ratings, business climate, management changes, litigation and
government actions, and other similar factors. This process also involves monitoring late payments, downgrades by rating agencies, key
financial ratios, financial statements, revenue forecasts and cash flow projections as indicators of credit issues.

At the end of each quarter, all securities are reviewed to determine whether impairments should be recorded. This quarterly process includes an
assessment of the credit quality of each investment in the entire securities portfolio. Additional reporting and review procedures are conducted
for those securities where fair value is less than 90% of amortized cost. Further, detailed analysis is performed for each issue or issues having
experienced a formal restructuring or where the security has experienced material deterioration in fair value.

The Company considers relevant facts and circumstances in evaluating whether the impairment of a security is other-than-temporary. Relevant
facts and circumstances considered include (1) the current fair value of the security as compared to cost, (2) the length of time the fair value has
been below cost, (3) the financial position of the issuer, including the current and future impact of any specific events, and (4) the Company’s
ability and intent to hold the
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security to maturity or until it recovers in value. To the extent the Company determines that a security is deemed to be other than temporarily
impaired, the difference between amortized cost and fair value would be charged to income as a realized investment loss, resulting in a
permanent reduction to the cost basis of the underlying investment.

There are a number of significant risks and uncertainties inherent in the process of monitoring impairments and determining if an impairment is
other-than-temporary. These risks and uncertainties include (1) the risk that the Company’s assessment of an issuer’s ability to meet all of its
contractual obligations will change based on changes in the credit characteristics of that issuer, (2) the risk that the economic outlook will be
worse than expected or have more of an impact on the issuer than anticipated, (3) the risk that fraudulent information could be provided to the
Company’s investment professionals who determine the fair value estimates, and (4) the risk that new information obtained by the Company or
changes in other facts and circumstances lead the Company to change its intent to hold the security to maturity or until it recovers in value. Any
of these situations could result in a charge to income in a future period.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recorded on the differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are reported
in the consolidated financial statements. Recorded amounts are adjusted to reflect changes in income tax rates and other tax law provisions as
they become enacted. Deferred income tax assets are subject to ongoing evaluation of whether such assets will be realized. The ultimate
realization of deferred income tax assets generally depends on generating future taxable income during the periods in which temporary
differences become deductible and the reversal of deferred tax liabilities. A valuation allowance against deferred income tax assets may be
required if future taxable income is not expected. The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, on January 1, 2007. The Company did not change the liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, 2007
as a result of implementing Interpretation 48. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, if recognized, that would impact the effective tax
rate was $0.8 million as of December 31, 2007.

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits

The measurement of pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and costs depends on a variety of assumptions. Assumptions are made
regarding the discount rate, expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, employee turnover, expected compensation increases, health care
claim costs, heath care cost trends, retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate and the expected return on plan assets have the most
significant impact on the level of cost. See Note 7 – Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further details.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Summary

The Company’s net income decreased $1.3 million in 2007, versus the prior year, to a total of $35.7 million. Net income increased $0.7 million in
2006 compared to 2005, to a total of $36.9 million. Net income per share decreased 3% in 2007 to $3.01, compared with $3.11 for 2006 and
$3.03 in 2005. The decrease for the year ended 2007 included declines in insurance revenues and net investment income and an increase in
income tax expense. These were partially offset by decreases in policyholder benefits, interest credited to policyholder account balances,
amortization of DAC and VOBA and operating expenses. The improved results for the year ended 2006 compared to 2005 were largely due to
an increase in net investment income and decreases in policyholder benefits, interest credited to policyholder account balances, and amortization
of DAC and VOBA. These favorable changes were partially offset by a decline in insurance revenues and increased operating expenses.
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Sales

The Company measures sales in terms of new premiums and deposits. Premiums are included in insurance revenues in the Consolidated
Statements of Income, while deposits are shown as a Financing Activity in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The first set of tables
below reconciles premiums included in insurance revenues and provides detail by new and renewal business. New premiums are also detailed by
product. The second set of tables reconciles deposits with the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and provides detail by new and renewal
deposits. New deposits are also detailed by product.

In 2007, the Company experienced a 1% increase in new individual life premiums, a 13% increase in new immediate annuity sales and a 49%
increase in new group life premiums. The decline in 2006 largely resulted from 41% decline in new immediate annuity sales, and a 23%
decrease in new group life insurance premiums. Consolidated renewal premiums declined 1% in 2007 compared to a 1% increase in 2006. The
Company terminated a group accident and health product line at year-end 2006, which impacts year-to-year comparisons. The termination of
this product line resulted in a $1.5 million reduction in new premiums in 2007. Excluding the premiums for this product line from both

-20-

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

37



years, a 1% increase in total premiums and a 6% increase in total new premiums would result. Total premiums were flat in 2007, following a 2%
decline in 2006.

2007 % 2006 % 2005
New premiums:

Individual life insurance $   12,356    1 $   12,242  (6) $   13,092
Immediate annuities     8,142  13     7,174 (41)   12,159
Group life insurance     1,516  49     1,020 (23)     1,327
Group accident and health insurance     9,997 (11)   11,267  17     9,612

Total new premiums   32,011   1   31,703 (12)   36,190
Renewal premiums 143,449 (1) 144,223    1 143,376
Total premiums $ 175,460 - $ 175,926  (2) $ 179,566

Total new deposits increased 8% in 2007 after declining 26% in 2006. The improvement in 2007 was largely the result of a 37% increase in new
variable annuity deposits and a 7% increase in new universal life insurance deposits. The increase in the sale of universal life products positively
reflects the Company’s increased emphasis on the sale of life insurance products. The increased sales of variable annuity products continue to
reflect customer interest in the equity markets. Comparatively for 2006, new variable annuity deposits decreased 14% while new universal life
insurance deposits increased 1%.

New variable universal life deposits increased 5% in 2007 and 7% in 2006. New fixed deferred annuity deposits decreased 12% in 2007 and
40% in 2006. These declines can be attributed to increased competition and the emergence of alternative products.

Renewal deposits declined 2% in 2007 and 11% in 2006. The decline in 2007 primarily resulted from a $5.1 million or 25% decrease in fixed
deferred annuities that was partially offset by a $4.6 million or 44% increase in variable annuity deposits. The decline in 2006 was primarily due
to a $10.9 million or 35% decline in fixed deferred annuity deposits and a $2.5 million or 19% decline in variable annuity deposits.

2007 % 2006 % 2005
New deposits:

Universal life insurance $   10,869 7 $   10,117 1 $  10,004
Variable universal life insurance     2,480 5     2,372 7    2,210
Fixed deferred annuities   26,348 (12)   29,815 (40)   49,698
Variable annuities   29,426 37   21,507 (14)   24,894

Total new deposits   69,123 8   63,811 (26)   86,806
Renewal deposits 136,644 (2) 139,139 (11) 155,807
Total deposits $ 205,767 1 $ 202,950 (16) $ 242,613
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Insurance Revenues

Insurance revenues consist of premiums and contract charges, less reinsurance ceded. Insurance revenues decreased $3.4 million or 1% to
$231.9 million in 2007 compared to a similar decrease of $3.2 million or 1% in 2006. The decline in 2007 was primarily the result of a $3.1
million decrease in contract charges. A $1.0 million increase in immediate annuity premiums was offset by a $0.9 million decrease in individual
life premiums and a $0.6 million decrease in accident and health premiums. The decline in 2006 was largely the result of a $5.0 million decrease
in immediate annuity premiums and a $1.4 million decrease in individual life premiums. These changes were partially offset by a $2.8 million
increase in accident and health premiums, which was largely the result of increased group dental sales.

Insurance revenues are affected by the level of new sales, the type of products sold, and the persistency of policies, all of which may be
influenced by economic conditions, as well as competitive forces. Consumers continue to desire a broad portfolio of products with safety and
competitive return objectives, which the Company strives to provide. The Company offers a broad range of products, including variable
insurance products, which allow policyholders to participate in both the equity and fixed income markets. Interest sensitive and traditional
insurance products combine safety of principal with competitive interest returns.

Contract charges consist of cost of insurance, expense loads, the amortization of unearned revenues and surrender charges. Certain contract
charges for universal life insurance are not recognized in income immediately but are deferred as unearned revenues and are amortized into
income in a manner similar to the amortization of DAC. These contract charges, which are recorded as unearned revenues, are recognized into
income in proportion to the expected future gross profits of the business. In the same manner as DAC, profit expectations are based upon
assumptions of future interest spreads, mortality margins, expense margins and policy and premium persistency experience. At least annually, a
review is performed of the assumptions related to profit expectations. If it is determined the assumptions should be revised, the impact is
recorded as a change in the revenue reported in the current period as an unlocking adjustment.

Contract charges declined 3% in 2007 and were flat in 2006. Contract charges were reduced $1.7 million during the second quarter of 2007,
resulting from a correction of the unearned revenue portion of a universal life product. The amount of the correction attributable to prior years
was $1.1 million, including $0.9 million in 2006 and $0.2 million in 2005.

Reinsurance ceded declined $0.2 million to $55.0 million in 2007 from $55.2 million in 2006. In 2005, reinsurance ceded was $55.8 million.
The Company uses reinsurance as a means to mitigate its risks and to reduce the earnings volatility from claims.

Investment Revenues

Net investment income decreased 3% in 2007 but increased 1% in 2006 from 2005. Net investment income was $190.4 million in 2007,
compared with $196.3 million in 2006 and $194.6 million in 2005. The decrease in net investment income in 2007 resulted, in part, from
reduced investment assets. Total investments declined $128.0 million at December 31, 2007 from the prior year. This included a decline of $50.6
million in 2007 due to the sale of Generations Bank. In addition, real estate assets declined $13.5 million during 2007, as the Company sold
several real estate properties. Finally, investments in mortgage loans decreased $21.9 million, as normal amortization and prepayments in the
portfolio outpaced new loan production. Investment expenses increased $0.6 million in 2007, primarily resulting from reduced real estate
accruals in the prior year. The increase in net investment income in 2006 resulted from reduced investment expenses, primarily due to lower real
estate expenses. Negatively affecting net investment income in 2006, total invested assets declined versus the prior year but were offset by a
slight increase in investment yields. In 2005, investment expenses increased due to increased real estate expenses.
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Net investment income was largely composed of interest and dividends on fixed maturity securities, equity securities and short-term
investments. Net investment income also includes income from mortgage loans, real estate and policy loans. Investment income is stated net of
investment expenses. Investment income on securities related activity declined $2.6 million or 2% in 2007 compared with 2006. This same
activity declined less than $0.6 million or 1% in 2006 compared with 2005. Income from fixed maturity securities decreased 3% in 2007 and 1%
in 2006. Partially offsetting the decline in investment income for fixed maturity securities, income from short-term investments almost doubled
during 2007 compared to a 21% increase in 2006. This was due to improved short-term yields in both periods. In addition, there was increased
purchase activity in 2007.

Investments in mortgage loans decreased $21.9 million during 2007. The sale of Generations Bank resulted in a decrease in mortgage loans of
$18.3 million. Consequently, investment income from mortgage loans decreased $0.5 million or 2% for the year. Despite a $13.4 million
increase in mortgage loan assets in 2006, mortgage loan investment income declined $1.1 million or 3%. The reduced income in 2006 reflected a
decline in available yields on new mortgages and the impact of the prepayment of loans with rates higher than those of new loans.

-22-

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

41



The Company closely monitors its investments in securities classified as subprime.  Subprime securities include all bonds or portion of bonds
where the underlying collateral is made up of home equity loans or first mortgage loans to borrowers whose credit scores at the time of
origination were lower than the level recognized in the market at prime. The Company’s classification of subprime does not include Alt-A or
jumbo loans, unless the collateral otherwise meets the preceding definition. At December 31, 2007, the Company had investments with subprime
residential mortgage exposure of $39.1 million and a related $1.8 million unrealized loss.  This exposure amounted to 1% of the Company’s
invested assets and all such assets are valued based on external pricing sources. Concerns arose during the second half of 2007
regarding subprime mortgage loan defaults.  Market dislocations have exacerbated this issue as some sources of liquidity for mortgage lenders,
such as asset-backed commercial paper, have contracted dramatically.  Demand for investments securitized by home loans has also fallen
significantly, making it more difficult for mortgage loan originators to sell their loans profitably.  Home prices continue to fall, which hinders
potential sales and loan refinancings that might otherwise avert defaults.  These issues have largely been centered around increasing
delinquencies and default rates by subprime borrowers. Many investors have shunned securities backed by home loans, regardless of the actual
quality of the underlying assets, sending market values for this entire class of securities downward. 

Real estate investments decreased $13.5 million in 2007 compared with 2006 due to property sales during the year. Accordingly, investment
income on real estate decreased 21% in 2007. Real estate investments increased $28.9 million in 2006 compared with 2005, but many of these
new investments were development properties where the income stream was less than those of mature properties. As such, investment income
from real estate investments declined 5% in 2006 compared with 2005.

The Company offers policy loans as a benefit to its policyholders, and loans are secured by the cash value of the policy. Investment income from
policy loans declined by $0.5 million in both 2007 and 2006. These declines were directly related to reduced balances of loans outstanding.

The Company recorded net realized investment gains of $5.4 million in 2007, $5.6 million in 2006 and $6.1 million in 2005. The realized
investment gains were primarily the result of the sale of real estate investment properties in all three years, including $7.1 million, $4.2 million
and $6.8 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company also recorded a $1.9 million gain from the sale of Generations Bank during
2007, which is included in other investment gains, below. The following table provides detail concerning realized investment gains and losses
over the three years ended December 31.

Realized Investment Gains and Losses 2007 2006 2005
Gross gains resulting from:

Sales of investment securities $      964 $  3,550 $   3,991
Investment securities called   1,090  1,142      989
Sales of real estate   7,118  4,159   7,678
Other investment gains   1,905         1      905

Total gross gains 11,077  8,852 13,563
Gross losses resulting from:

Sales of investment securities (1,240) (1,151) (6,009)
Write-downs of investment securities (4,036) (1,060) -
Investment securities called    (332)    (593)   (599)
Sales of real estate - -   (927)
Other investment losses -    (173) -

Total gross losses (5,608) (2,977) (7,535)
Amortization of DAC and VOBA      (43)    (254)       85
Realized investment gains $  5,426 $  5,621 $  6,113
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The Company realized investment gains and losses from several other sources. Many securities purchased by the Company contain call
provisions, which allow the issuer to redeem the securities at a particular price. Depending upon the terms of the call provision and price at
which the security was purchased, a gain or loss may be realized. Sales and calls of investments in securities resulted in net realized gains of
$0.5 million in 2007 and $2.9 million in 2006 and a realized loss of $1.6 million in 2005. Other sources of realized investment gains and losses
include write-downs of investment securities, changes in the Company’s valuation reserve for potential future losses in the commercial mortgage
portfolio and other miscellaneous investment gains and losses.

Real estate investments were $96.0 million at December 31, 2007 and $109.5 million at December 31, 2006. Real estate investments consist
principally of office buildings and industrial warehouses that are both in use and under development, and investments in multi-family and
single-family residential properties, including affordable housing. The Company also invests in unimproved land for future development.
Properties have been acquired through individual purchases, build-to-suit and speculative development. The Company generally maintains its
ownership interest in these properties on a direct and joint venture basis with the long-term intention of earning positive cash flow and income
by leasing the properties, along with the expectation of realizing capital appreciation upon sale. The Company periodically sells certain real
estate assets when management believes that the market and timing are perceived to be advantageous.

The following table provides credit quality information on fixed maturity securities, as determined by one of the nationally recognized ratings
firms as of December 31, 2007.

% of
Investment Amortized Fair Fair
Quality Cost Value Value

Investment grade $ 2,449,197 $ 2,462,193 94
Below investment grade
(rated BB or lower)    169,912    168,880 6

$ 2,619,109 $ 2,631,073

The Company reviews and analyzes its securities on an ongoing basis to determine whether impairments exist that are other-than-temporary.
Based upon these analyses, specific security values are written down to fair value through earnings as a realized investment loss if the security's
value is considered to be an other-than-temporary impairment.

The Company’s analysis of fixed maturity securities at year-end 2007 resulted in the determination that two securities had other-than-temporary
declines which were written down by $4.0 million.  One of the two securities was below cost by 20% or more for more than six consecutive
months and was the subject of a recent leveraged buyout, that was finalized during the fourth quarter 2007, which greatly increased the debt
level of the company.  The leveraged buyout plan is highly dependent upon the timely sale of certain assets at what are perceived to be
aggressive rates.  In addition, this company is involved in several declining industries that are highly dependent on general economic activity. 
Accordingly, the Company wrote down this security $3.3 million at year-end 2007.  The second security filed for Chapter 11 protection and
indicated that it would not be able to fully meet all of its borrowings.  The Company recognized an other-than-temporary impairment on this
security at year-end 2006 of $1.1 million.  As a result of this new action, the Company recognized an additional $0.7 million impairment in
2007.  At December 31, 2006, this security

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

44



-24-

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

45



was below cost by 20% or more for more than twelve consecutive months.   It was in a highly competitive and cyclical industry that was
experiencing weakened demand and overcapacity.  Capital expenditures for equipment upgrades were exceeding cash generation.  In 2005, the
Company had no securities that it identified as other-than-temporarily impaired.  At year-end 2005, there were no investment securities that were
below cost by 20% or more for more than six consecutive months

The following table provides asset class detail of the investment portfolio. Fixed maturity and equity securities represented 80% of the entire
investment portfolio at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Percent of Invested Assets 2007 2006
Amount % Amount %

Fixed maturity securities $ 2,631,073 78 $ 2,719,439 78
Equity securities      59,149   2      52,351   1
Mortgage loans    450,148 13    472,019 14
Real estate      96,049   3    109,525   3
Policy loans      92,803   3      96,218   3
Short-term      36,522   1      41,037   1
Other - -        3,182 -
Total $ 3,365,744 100 $ 3,493,771 100

The securities portfolio had net unrealized gains before taxes of $13.2 million at year-end 2007 compared with $2.7 million at year-end 2006.
The portfolio was broadly diversified across sectors. A variety of measures have been employed to manage the portfolio’s credit and interest rate
risks, as discussed later in this document in Item 7A – Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Mortgage loans comprised 13% of the investment portfolio at December 31, 2007, down slightly from 14% of the investment portfolio at the end
of 2006. The majority of the mortgages were commercial loans on industrial warehouses and office properties. None of the loans have been
restructured nor have there been any loans in foreclosure over the past three years. One mortgage loan was delinquent by less than thirty days as
of December 31, 2007. The portfolio’s fair value exceeded its carrying value by $14.1 million at year-end 2007. Conversely, the portfolio’s
carrying value exceeded the fair value by $0.3 million as of year-end 2006. The Company does not hold mortgage loans of any borrower that
exceed 5% of stockholders’ equity.

Real estate investments represented approximately 3% of the investment portfolio at year-end 2007, the same as year-end 2006. The real estate
properties’ estimated fair value is well above the carrying value.

Policyholder Benefits
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Policyholder benefits consist of death benefits (mortality), annuity benefits, accident and health benefits, surrenders and the associated increase
or decrease in reserves for future policy benefits. Policyholder benefits declined $1.4 million or 1% in 2007. This decrease was primarily due to
declines in death benefits and surrenders. These declines were partially offset by an increase in reserves established for these benefits. The
increase in immediate annuity premiums in 2007 contributed to the increase in reserves. Policyholder benefits declined $1.8 million or 1% in
2006 compared with 2005, as benefits paid were more than offset by the decrease in the reserves established on these benefits. In addition, in
2006 a decrease in immediate annuity premiums resulted in a decrease in reserves for future policy benefits.

The largest component of policyholder benefits was death benefits. Death benefits accounted for 41% of policyholder benefits and interest
credited to policyholder account balances in both 2007 and 2006. Death benefits decreased 3% in 2007 versus a 2% increase in 2006. Mortality
was within the range of anticipated mortality experience for both years.
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Policyholder benefits for the group accident and health product line increased $1.0 million or 4% in 2007 and $2.2 million or 11% in 2006,
largely as the result of an increase in group dental benefits paid.

Interest Credited to Policyholder Account Balances

Interest credited to policyholder account balances declined $3.4 million or 4% in 2007 and $4.0 million or 4% in 2006. Interest was credited to
policyholder account balances for universal life, fixed deferred annuities and other investment-type products. Interest credited to policyholder
account balances accounted for 35% of policyholder benefits and interest credited to policyholder account balances in 2007, down from 36% a
year earlier. The amount of interest credited is a function of the crediting rate and policyholder account balances. Policyholder account balances
are impacted by deposits, benefits, surrenders and contract charges. The decline in interest credited for both 2007 and 2006 was due to a
combination of reduced policyholder account balances and lower crediting rates. Policyholder account balances declined $103.1 million in 2007
and $87.3 million in 2006. The average interest rate credited to policyholder account balances was 4.30% in 2007, 4.32% in 2006 and 4.37% in
2005.

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC) and Value of Business Acquired (VOBA)

The amortization of DAC was $31.1 million in 2007 compared with $34.9 million in 2006 and $35.6 million in 2005. The Company
prospectively unlocked certain DAC assumptions, which reduced amortization by $3.4 million in 2007, $0.7 million in 2006 and $2.2 million in
2005. DAC profit expectations are based upon assumptions of future interest spreads, mortality margins, expense margins and policy and
premium persistency experience. At least annually, a review is performed of the assumptions related to profit expectations. As warranted by a
combination of historical results and expected future trends, the Company may unlock these assumptions and, accordingly, increase or decrease
deferred acquisition costs.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Old American segment reduced its amortization of DAC by $1.2 million. This adjustment, which was a
correction of an understatement of the capitalization of DAC in prior periods, was not material to 2006 or any prior period financial statements.

The amortization of VOBA was $9.2 million in 2007, $7.4 million in 2006 and $7.5 million in 2005. The amortization of the value of business
acquired (VOBA) also decreases in line with the profit expectations on the acquired closed block of business. During 2007, there was a $1.1
million unlocking adjustment that increased VOBA amortization and was related to the assumptions for mortality margins. There were no
VOBA unlocking adjustments during 2006 or 2005.

Reinsurance

The Company reinsures certain risks with unaffiliated insurance companies under traditional indemnity reinsurance arrangements. These
arrangements include yearly renewable term agreements and coinsurance agreements. The Company enters into these agreements to assist in
diversifying risks and to limit the maximum loss from risks on certain policies. The ceded reinsurance agreements do not relieve the Company of
its obligations to its policyholders. As such, the Company monitors the ongoing ability of the reinsurers to perform under the terms of the
reinsurance agreements.

Premiums are reported on a gross basis, with separate reporting for premiums ceded under reinsurance agreements. Policyholder benefits and
expenses are reported net of reinsurance ceded, which included the following amounts.

2007 2006 2005
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Policyholder benefits and expenses
ceded under reinsurance $ 61,122 $ 57,248 $ 56,214

Future policy benefits and other related assets and liabilities are not reduced for reinsurance in the balance sheet. A reinsurance receivable is
established for such balance sheet items. Reinsurance related to policy and claim reserves ceded of $149.5 million and $142.2 million were
included in the reinsurance receivables as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Ceded benefits recoverable from reinsurers were $12.8
million and $16.0 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company’s overall reinsurance strategy has not changed during the periods addressed in this report. However, the Company has
implemented changes to its reinsurance on certain new products by reducing the amount of coverage that is reinsured. These changes have been
made primarily due to the increased cost of reinsurance currently available in the market.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses consist of commissions and production allowances, net of the capitalization of commission and production allowances, and
expenses from the Company’s operations. In total, operating expenses decreased 5% in 2007 compared to 2006 but increased 4% in 2006 over
2005. The decline in 2007 largely resulted from reduced employee benefit accruals and legal costs. Operating expenses increased in 2006 over
2005, primarily due to an increase in salary expense and employee and agent benefits.

Income Taxes

The Company recorded income tax expense of $17.3 million or 33% of income before tax in 2007, compared to income tax expense of $13.7
million or 27% of income before tax in 2006. The increase in the tax expense in 2007 versus 2006 was due to higher income before tax, a
decrease in earned low income housing tax credits, and the provision to tax return adjustments. In 2005, the Company recorded an income tax
expense of $12.8 million or 26% of income before tax. The increase in the tax expense in 2006 versus 2005 was primarily the result of higher
income before tax and the provision to tax return adjustments, partially offset by a decrease in contingent tax liabilities. Income taxes will
fluctuate depending upon items such as net income, realized investment gains and losses and affordable housing tax credits.

An adjustment was reflected in the fourth quarter of 2007 that related to deferred tax expense attributable to years 2004 and prior through 2006.
The unrecorded deferred tax expense (benefit) in 2004 and prior, 2005 and 2006 was $1.1 million, ($0.3) million and ($0.3) million,
respectively.

The income tax rate in the three years was reduced by tax credits generated from the Company’s investments in affordable housing. The effect of
the affordable housing credits on the effective tax rate was a tax benefit of $2.0 million or 4% in 2007, $2.9 million or 6% in 2006 and $3.0
million or 6% in 2005.

The Company establishes contingent tax assets or liabilities, when appropriate, to provide for potential challenges by taxing jurisdictions. In
2007, the Company’s income tax expense was reduced $0.1 million, due to a net decrease in contingent tax liabilities relating to the 2004 through
2006 tax years. In 2006, the Company’s income tax expense was reduced $0.7 million or 1% of income before tax, due to a net decrease in
contingent tax liabilities. The Company reported no change in the tax contingency balance in 2005.

Operating Results by Segment

The Company has three reportable business segments, which are defined based on the nature of the products and services offered: Individual
Insurance, Group Insurance and Old American. The Individual Insurance segment consists of individual insurance products for both Kansas City
Life and Sunset Life. The Individual Insurance segment is marketed through a nationwide sales force of independent general agents and
third-party marketing arrangements. The Group Insurance segment consists of sales of group life, group disability and dental products. This
segment is marketed through a nationwide sales force of independent general agents, group brokers and third-party marketing arrangements. Old
American consists of individual insurance products designed primarily as final expense products. These products are marketed through a
nationwide general agency sales force with exclusive territories, using direct response marketing to supply agents with leads.
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Individual Insurance

The following table presents financial data of the Individual Insurance business segment for the years ended December 31.

2007 2006 2005
Insurance revenues:

Premiums $   55,412 $   53,791 $   58,001
Contract charges 111,422 114,496 114,745
Reinsurance ceded (42,644) (41,069) (40,584)

Total insurance revenues 124,190 127,218 132,162
Investment revenues:

Net investment income 176,666 182,766 181,311
Realized investment gains     5,820     5,300     6,488

Other revenues   11,214   10,717     9,641
Total revenues 317,890 326,001 329,602

Policyholder benefits   93,200   95,603   99,294
Interest credited to policyholder account balances   91,215   94,648   98,637
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs

and value of business acquired   27,568   30,581   29,640
Operating expenses   55,283   59,952   56,638

Total benefits and expenses 267,266 280,784 284,209

Income before income tax expense   50,624   45,217   45,393

Income tax expense   15,822   12,049   11,754

Net income $   34,802 $   33,168 $   33,639

This segment’s direct insurance revenues (total insurance revenues excluding reinsurance ceded) are primarily derived from premiums on
traditional insurance products and contract charges. Traditional insurance products principally include whole life, term life and immediate
annuities. Contract charges are collected from interest sensitive insurance products, including universal life, fixed deferred annuities and variable
life and annuities. In 2007, this segment received 33% of its direct insurance revenues from premiums on traditional products, compared to 32%
in 2006 and 34% in 2005.

This segment’s products are primarily marketed through a nationwide sales force of independent general agents. The Individual Insurance
segment is central to the Company’s overall performance and generated 98% of consolidated net income in 2007. Customer revenues consist of
insurance revenues and other revenues. This segment produced 56% of consolidated customer revenues in 2007, the same as in 2006.

-28-

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

51



Premium information is provided in the table below. New premiums increased $0.8 million or 6%, following a $5.0 million or 27% decrease in
2006. The increase in 2007 was due to a $1.0 million or 13% increase in immediate annuities. Conversely, the decline in 2006 was due to a $5.0
million or 41% decline in sales of immediate annuities during the year. New individual life insurance premiums declined 3% but were flat in
2006. Renewal premiums increased $0.8 million or 2% in 2007, the same as in 2006.

2007 % 2006 % 2005
New premiums:

Individual life insurance $   5,773  (3) $   5,961 - $   5,944
Immediate annuities   8,142 13   7,174 (41) 12,159

Total new premiums 13,915   6 13,135 (27) 18,103
Renewal premiums 41,497   2 40,656    2 39,898
Total premiums $ 55,412   3 $ 53,791   (7) $ 58,001

Deposit information is provided in the table below. New deposits increased 8% in 2007 but decreased 26% in 2006. New fixed deferred annuity
deposits declined 12% and 40% in 2007 and 2006, respectively. The lower sales of fixed deferred annuity deposits can be attributed to increased
competition, changing consumer preferences and the emergence of alternative products. New variable annuity deposits increased 37% in 2007,
improving from a decline of 14% in 2006. Increased sales of variable annuity products reflect customer interest in the equity markets. New
universal life deposits increased 7% and new variable universal life deposits increased 5% in 2007 compared with 2006. These same deposits
increased 1% and 7%, respectively, in 2006 versus 2005. Universal life deposits have been a primary focus for sales and marketing as part of the
Company’s emphasis on sales of individual life products.

2007 % 2006 % 2005
New deposits:

Universal life insurance $   10,869    7 $   10,117    1 $   10,004
Variable universal life insurance     2,480    5     2,372    7     2,210
Fixed deferred annuities   26,348 (12)   29,815 (40)   49,698
Variable annuities   29,426  37   21,507 (14)   24,894

Total new deposits   69,123    8   63,811 (26)   86,806
Renewal deposits 136,644  (2) 139,139 (11) 155,807
Total deposits $ 205,767    1 $ 202,950 (16) $ 242,613

Insurance revenues decreased 2% in 2007 and 4% in 2006. The decline in 2007 was primarily due to a reduction in contract charges, resulting
from the unearned revenue correction discussed below. A decline in immediate annuity sales, combined with slightly lower contract charges
accounted for the revenue decrease in 2006.

Contract charges consist of cost of insurance, expense loads, unearned revenues and surrender charges. Certain contract charges for universal life
insurance are not recognized in income immediately but are deferred as unearned revenues and are amortized into income in a manner similar to
the amortization of DAC. These contract charges, which are recorded as unearned revenues, are recognized into income in proportion to the
expected future gross profits of the business. In the same manner as DAC, profit expectations are based upon assumptions of future interest
spreads, mortality margins, expense margins and policy and premium persistency experience. At least annually, a review is performed of the

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

52



-29-

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

53



assumptions related to profit expectations. If it is determined the assumptions should be revised, the impact is recorded as a change in the
revenue reported in the current period as an unlocking adjustment.

Contract charges declined $3.1 million in 2007 and $0.2 million in 2006. Contract charges were reduced by $1.7 million during the second
quarter of 2007, resulting from a correction of the unearned revenue portion of a universal life product. The amount of the correction attributable
to prior periods was $1.1 million, including $0.2 million in 2005 and $0.9 million in 2006.

Net investment income decreased 3% in 2007 and increased 1% in 2006. Investment income is primarily driven by changes in interest rates,
asset levels and investment expenses. Investment yields increased in 2007 and 2006 from the prior years. However, the asset level declined in
both 2007 and 2006. In addition, investment expenses declined in 2006, reflecting reduced real estate expenses and a decline in interest expense
from reduced notes payable.

Policyholder benefits consist of death benefits (mortality), annuity benefits, individual accident and health benefits, surrenders and the associated
increase or decrease in reserves for future policy benefits. Policyholder benefits decreased $2.4 million or 3% in 2007 versus 2006 and $3.7
million or 4% in 2006 compared with 2005. The decline in 2007 was largely due to a decrease in both death benefits and surrenders of individual
life insurance. Immediate annuity premium receipts declined in 2006, which contributed to the decline in policyholder benefits because of the
resulting decrease in reserves for future policy benefits.

Death benefits decreased 5% in 2007 but increased 5% in 2006. Death benefits will fluctuate from period-to-period. While mortality results were
different for 2007 and 2006, both years were within the range of anticipated mortality.

Interest was credited to policyholder account balances for universal life, fixed deferred annuities and other investment-type products. The
amount of interest credited is a function of the crediting rate and account balances. Account balances are impacted by deposits, benefits,
surrenders and contract charges. Interest credited to policyholder account balances decreased $3.4 million in 2007 versus 2006 and $4.0 million
in 2006 compared with 2005. The declines in both years were primarily due to a combination of lower policyholder account balances and lower
crediting rates.

The amortization of DAC has fluctuated over the past three years due to prospective unlocking adjustments for changes in assumptions for
future years. The impact of these unlocking adjustments was to reduce the amortization of DAC as follows: $3.4 million in 2007, $0.7 million in
2006 and $2.2 million in 2005. The amortization of the VOBA also decreases in line with the profit expectations on the acquired block of
business. During 2007, there was a $1.1 million unlocking adjustment, which increased VOBA amortization and was related to the assumptions
for mortality margins. There were no VOBA unlocking adjustments during 2006 or 2005.

Operating expenses include commissions, net of the capitalization of certain commissions, expenses on operations and other expenses. In 2007,
commissions decreased while capitalization of commissions increased. In 2006, both commissions and capitalization of commissions decreased.
Operating expenses decreased $4.7 million in 2007 compared to a $3.3 million increase in 2006. The decrease in 2007 was largely due to
reductions in employee benefits, legal fees and guaranty assessments. Expenses increased in 2006, primarily due to an increase in salary expense
and employee and agent benefits.

Net income for this segment increased 5% in 2007 over 2006, but decreased 1% in 2006 compared with 2005. The improved results for 2007
were due to decreases in policyholder benefits, interest credited to policyholder account balances, amortization of DAC and VOBA and
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operating expenses. Partially offsetting these improvements were decreases in contract charges and net investment income and an increase in
income tax expense. The increase in tax expense was due in part to a reduction in affordable housing tax credits. The decrease in 2006 reflected
reduced revenues that were partially offset by reduced benefits and expenses, along with increased income taxes. Income excluding realized
investment gains, net of tax, increased 4% in 2007 compared with 2006 and 1% in 2006 versus 2005. These increases primarily reflect reduced
policyholder benefits and interest credited to policyholder account balances. Non-insurance subsidiaries are included in this segment, but they
are not material to results of the segment.

-30-

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

55



Group Insurance

The following table presents financial data of the Group Insurance business segment for the years ended December 31.

2007 2006 2005
Insurance revenues:
Premiums $ 54,062 $ 54,065 $ 50,783
Reinsurance ceded (8,286) (9,488) (9,913)

Total insurance revenues 45,776 44,577 40,870
Investment revenues:
Net investment income      426      272      233

Other revenues      278      608      661
Total revenues 46,480 45,457 41,764

Policyholder benefits 30,061 28,596 25,950
Operating expenses 19,309 19,114 19,220

Total benefits and expenses 49,370 47,710 45,170

Loss before income tax benefit (2,890) (2,253) (3,406)

Income tax benefit    (867)   (676) (1,022)

Net loss $ (2,023) $ (1,577) $ (2,384)

The Company offers several insurance products in the Group Insurance segment: dental, group life, short and long-term disability, and vision.
The Group Insurance segment markets its group products primarily to small and mid-size organizations. Products are sold through group
representatives targeting a nationwide network of independent general agents and group brokers, along with the Company’s career general
agents. This sales network is this segment’s core distribution system. Additionally, the Company enters into selective third-party marketing
arrangements to market group products. This segment generated 19% of the Company’s customer revenues in 2007, an increase from 18% in
2006.

The group market is highly competitive and group policies are periodically reviewed to ensure they conform to target claims, expenses and profit
objectives. Renewal terms that meet target pricing objectives are communicated to the group policyholder who may then decide to seek
alternative bids from competing carriers.

At year-end 2006, the Group segment exited the stop loss market. The stop loss product line was being offered through an independent
managing general underwriter, which also provided third-party administration. During the fourth quarter of 2006, the independent managing
general underwriter was acquired by another organization, which then terminated the agreement. The Company will continue to focus on its core
products and services, but may re-enter the stop loss market at a later date.

The Group Insurance segment has experienced net losses in each of the three years presented. Improvement efforts continue to be focused in
three primary areas. First, emphasis is being placed on the growth of the in-force business to achieve better expense ratios from fixed costs and
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overhead. This sales growth will be achieved through increased individual productivity of the existing group representatives and through a
continued expansion of the group distribution
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system. The second area of focus for improvement is to increase the use of technology to achieve improved administrative efficiency, which will
ultimately reduce expenses. The third area of focus is to add new products to the portfolio, particularly voluntary products which tend to be more
profitable and will increasingly becoming a larger share of the group marketplace.

Premium information is provided in the table below. New premiums decreased 6% in 2007 over 2006, following a 12% increase in 2006. New
group life premiums increased 49% in 2007, following a 23% decrease in 2006. New group accident and health premiums declined 11% in
2007. However, excluding the terminated stop loss block, new group accident and health premiums increased 3% compared with a year ago. The
growth in new premiums in 2006 was largely the result of a $2.4 million or 59% increase in dental premiums compared with 2005. This growth
resulted from the focus of improved production through group sales representatives, one of the primary areas of targeted improvement.

Renewal premiums increased $0.8 million or 2% in 2007. Excluding the adjustment for unrecorded premiums discussed below, renewal
premiums increased $1.4 million or 3%. Renewal premiums increased $1.9 million or 5% in 2006, reflecting improved persistency and the
recognition of previously unrecorded premiums from earlier periods of $0.6 million. An adjustment was reflected in the second quarter of 2006
that related to renewal premiums attributable to years 2003 through 2006. The unrecorded premiums in 2003, 2004 and 2005 were $0.1 million,
$0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively. Total group premiums were flat in 2007 compared with an increase of $3.3 million or 6% in 2006.
Excluding the terminated stop loss product line, total group premiums increased 3% in 2007 compared with 2006.

2007 % 2006 % 2005
New premiums:

Group life insurance $   1,517  49 $   1,020 (23) $   1,327
Group dental insurance   6,785    4   6,524  59   4,112
Group disability insurance   1,530    5   1,454 (26)   1,971
Group stop loss insurance   1,423 (52)   2,971 (10)   3,283
Other group insurance      258 (19)      318  29      246

Total new premiums 11,513  (6) 12,287  12 10,939
Renewal premiums 42,549   2 41,778    5 39,844
Total premiums $ 54,062 - $ 54,065    6 $ 50,783

The Company has used reinsurance in several of its group product lines to help mitigate risk. Reinsurance on premiums declined $1.2 million or
13% in 2007 and $0.4 million or 4% in 2006. The decrease in 2007 was largely due to the termination of the stop loss business and a change in
reinsurance structure on accidental death and dismemberment reinsurance. A major portion of the stop loss premiums was reinsured in order to
manage the potential risks associated with this product line. Reinsurance ceded on stop loss premiums were $0.9 million in 2007, $2.0 million in
2006 and $2.3 million in 2005.

Policyholder benefits consist of death benefits (mortality), accident and health benefits and the associated increase or decrease in reserves for
future policy benefits. Policyholder benefits increased $1.5 million or 5% in 2007, reflecting increased stop loss and dental benefits.
Policyholder benefits increased $2.6 million or 10% in 2006, reflecting an increase in dental benefits and death benefits.

Operating expenses in this segment include commissions, expenses associated with operations, insurance related taxes and other expenses.
Expenses associated with operations in this segment are specifically and directly identified, but also include allocated expenses. Operating
expenses in this segment increased 1% in 2007, following a 1% decline in 2006. The increase in 2007 largely resulted from two items. First,
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operating expenses increased, reflecting charges incurred for enhancements made to operating systems and software. These enhancements will
improve efficiencies and provide opportunities to reduce expenses in the future. This was partially offset by a reduction in legal fees as 2006
legal expense included the contingency reserve expense. The decrease in 2006 was due to reduced salary costs, as a result of a
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reduction in third-party arrangements and improvements in processing and technology. The reduction in operating expenses was achieved in
spite of a $0.7 million increase in a legal expense contingency reserve and a $0.3 million increase in commissions over 2005.

The net loss in the Group Insurance segment increased $0.5 million or 28% in 2007. This increase was largely due to increased policyholder
benefits and increased operating expenses that were partially offset by an increase in insurance revenues. The net loss in this segment decreased
$0.8 million or 34% in 2006, primarily resulting from improvement in insurance revenues. The Company continues to pursue opportunities for
revenue growth through improved productivity of group representatives and selective third-party marketing arrangements.
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Old American

The following table presents financial data of the Old American business segmentfor the years ended December 31.

2007 2006 2005
Insurance revenues:

Premiums $ 66,537 $ 68,644 $ 71,326
Reinsurance ceded (4,058) (4,601) (5,311)

Total insurance revenues 62,479 64,043 66,015
Investment revenues:

Net investment income 13,313 13,242 13,064
Realized investment gains (losses)    (394)      321     (375)

Other revenues         7        24        10
Total revenues 75,405 77,630 78,714

Policyholder benefits 43,197 43,706 44,457
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs

and value of business acquired 12,765 11,730 13,418
Operating expenses 14,266 14,588 13,830

Total benefits and expenses 70,228 70,024 71,705

Income before income tax expense   5,177   7,606   7,009

Income tax expense   2,295   2,279   2,080

Net income $   2,882 $   5,327 $   4,929

The Old American segment sells final expense insurance products nationwide through its general agency system with exclusive territories. This
segment provides agents with sales leads using direct response marketing. This segment produced 26% of consolidated customer revenues, the
same as in 2006. Net income for this segment decreased 46% to $2.9 million in 2007. Net income for 2006 increased 8% to $5.3 million. The
2007 decline largely resulted from a decrease in insurance revenues and increases in realized investment losses and amortization of DAC. Also
in 2007, this segment recorded a $0.7 million increase in income tax expense, reflecting corrections in estimates from tax years prior to 2005.
The increase in net income for 2006 reflected reduced policyholder benefits from improved mortality and a reduction in the amortization of
DAC. During 2006, this segment introduced several product enhancements that have resulted in a more competitive position with regard to
selected products. In 2007, this segment provided 8% of consolidated net income, compared to 14% in 2006.

Premium information is provided in the table below. New premiums increased 5% in 2007, compared to a 12% decrease in 2006. The increase in
2007 reflects a combination of product, compensation and distribution changes, which have improved the Company’s competitive position.
Renewal premiums decreased 4% in 2007 and 3% in 2006. Old American continues to focus on the recruitment and development of new
agencies and agents, along with improved production from existing agencies and agents.
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2007 % 2006 % 2005

New premiums $   6,583 5 $   6,281 (12) $   7,148
Renewal premiums 59,954 (4) 62,363 (3) 64,178
Total premiums $ 66,537 (3) $ 68,644 (4) $ 71,326

Net investment income increased 1% in 2007 as investment yields increased in 2007 over 2006. However, the asset level declined slightly
during the year. Net investment income increased 1% in 2006, reflecting increased investment yields and reduced investment expenses. These
improvements were offset by reduced investment assets in 2006. Reduced investment expenses largely resulted from reduced interest expense on
notes payable. Old American had realized investment losses in 2007 of $0.4 million but had realized investment gains of $0.3 million in 2006.

Policyholder benefits consist of death benefits (mortality), accident and health benefits, surrenders, and the associated increase or decrease in
reserves for future policy benefits. Policyholder benefits decreased 1% in 2007 and 2% in 2006, reflecting reduced mortality. A decrease in
death benefits was partially offset by an increase in reserves in both years.

The policyholder benefit ratio (policyholder benefits divided by total revenues, excluding realized investment gains and losses) remained
consistent in 2007 compared with 2006 but was higher than 2005. Lower revenues, primarily from reduced renewal premiums, more than offset
the decreased policyholder benefits. These results are largely reflective of the combined effect of a decline in premiums and improved mortality
over this timeframe.

2007 2006 2005

Total revenue $ 75,405 $ 77,630 $ 78,714
Less: Realized investment

gains (losses)    (394)      321     (375)
Revenue excluding realized
investment gains (losses) 75,799 77,309 79,089

Policyholder benefits $ 43,197 $ 43,706 $ 44,457

Policyholder benefit ratio 57% 57% 56%

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Old American segment reduced its amortization of DAC by $1.2 million. This adjustment, which was a
correction of an understatement of the capitalization of DAC in prior periods, was not material to 2006 or any prior period financial statements.
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Operating expenses include commissions and production allowances, net of the capitalization of certain commission and production allowances,
and expenses from operations. Operating expenses decreased 2% in 2007 largely due to reduced salaries and benefits and a reduction in agent
costs. Operating expenses increased 5% in 2006, primarily reflecting increased agent costs from increased lead generation.

An adjustment was reflected in the fourth quarter of 2007 that related to deferred tax expense attributable to years 2003 and prior through 2006.
The unrecorded deferred tax expense in 2003 and prior, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $0.3 million, $0.4 million, and $0.1 million and none,
respectively.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

The Company meets liquidity requirements primarily through positive cash flows from operations. The Company has sufficient sources of
liquidity to satisfy operational requirements. Primary sources of cash flow are premiums, other insurance considerations and deposits, receipts
for policyholder accounts, investment sales and maturities, investment income and access to credit from other financial institutions. The
principal uses of cash are for the insurance operations, including the purchase of investments, payments of insurance benefits, operating
expenses, dividends, income taxes, withdrawals from policyholder accounts and costs related to acquiring new business.

Cash provided from operations in each of the three years ended 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $32.9 million, $23.9 million, and $44.3 million,
respectively. Cash provided from operating activities increased $9.0 million in 2007 compared with a decline of $20.4 million in 2006. The
increase in 2007 compared with 2006 was largely the result of a $7.2 million reduction in claims paid to policyholders. Partially offsetting this,
premium receipts decreased $1.6 million and commissions paid to agents from premium and deposit activity increased $1.4 million. Cash is also
affected by changes in receivables and payables. At year-end 2007 compared with 2006, receivables increased $5.8 million while payables and
suspense items from ongoing operations increased $2.1 million. In 2006 compared with 2005, cash provided from operations declined as
premium receipts declined $3.8 million and claims paid to policyholders increased $10.7 million, offset by lower commissions paid to agents
from premium and deposit activity of $2.4 million. At year-end 2006 compared with 2005, receivables increased $4.6 million while payables
from claims declined $5.9 million, and payables and suspense items on ongoing operations decreased $6.1 million. Other liabilities increased
$6.7 million in 2006, following a $7.3 million decrease in 2005.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $84.1 million in 2007, $68.1 million in 2006 and $54.3 million in 2005. The Company’s new
investments in fixed maturity and equity securities were $328.3 million in 2007, up from $285.4 million during 2006, but down from $547.0
million during 2005. New investments in mortgage loans were $54.8 million in 2007, $72.6 million in 2006, and $109.6 million in 2005. During
2007, the Company decreased its purchases of real estate investments to $4.5 million, down from $45.0 million in 2006 and $17.8 million in
2005. Approximately 13% of the securities portfolio was sold, called or matured in both 2007 and 2006. The Company had $58.4 million in
mortgage loan maturities and principal paydowns in 2007, compared with $59.1 million in 2006 and $82.4 million in 2005. During 2007, the
Company had sales of real estate investments of $22.5 million, compared with $18.8 million in 2006 and $33.3 million in 2005. During these
three years, the Company sold several real estate properties which resulted in realized gains.

Net cash used in financing activities was $108.8 million in 2007, $100.2 million in 2006 and $91.8 million in 2005. The net repayments of
short-term notes payable were $4.3 million in 2007, $12.6 million in 2006 and $64.9 million in 2005. Deposits on policyholder account balances
equaled $205.8 million in 2007, $203.0 million in 2006 and $242.6 million in 2006. Withdrawals on policyholder account balances were $294.8
million in 2007, $273.8 million in 2006 and $245.9 million in 2005. The increase in withdrawals over the three years was consistent with rising
interest rates, changing consumer preferences, increased competition and the emergence of alternative products. Finally, the Company’s
stockholder dividends were $36.5 million in 2007, $12.8 million in 2006 and $12.9 million in 2005. During 2007, the Company paid a special,
one-time dividend of $2.00 per share in addition to its quarterly dividends.

The above information excludes net proceeds from variable insurance products. These proceeds are segregated into separate accounts and are not
held in the Company’s general investments because the policyholders, rather than the Company, assume the underlying investment risks.

Separate Accounts

At December 31, 2007, the Company had $420.4 million in separate account assets. This was an increase of $19.6 million from $400.7 million
at December 31, 2006. Positive investment performance increased separate accounts by $33.8 million in 2007 and $52.0 million in 2006.
Deposits in separate accounts increased in 2007 to $57.8 million versus $46.8 million in 2006. Partially offsetting these increases, policyholder
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withdrawals on these products were $57.1 million in 2007 and $51.8 million in 2006. In addition, contract charges were $14.8 million and $14.1
million in 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Debt and Short-Term Borrowing

The Company and certain subsidiaries have access to borrowing capacity through their membership affiliation with the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Des Moines (FHLB). At December 31, 2007, outstanding balances in notes payable to the FHLB were $10.4 million. All outstanding
balances have maturities of less than one year. The primary purpose for
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these borrowings is to ensure access to liquidity. This is accomplished through the purchase of highly liquid marketable securities from the
proceeds of these borrowings.

Borrowings were $10.4 million at year-end 2007, down from $14.7 million at year-end 2006. The decrease in borrowings was due to reductions
in borrowing from FHLB, which declined $4.3 million during 2007. The Company has access to unsecured revolving lines of credit of $60.0
million with two major commercial banks with no balances outstanding. Both lines of credit will expire during 2008, and it is expected that the
Company will renew these facilities.

Capital Resources

The Company considers existing capital resources to be more than adequate to support the current level of business activities.

The following table shows the capital adequacy of the Company for the past two years.

2007 2006
Total assets less separate accounts $ 3,931,715 $ 4,057,046
Total stockholders' equity    684,401    684,304
Ratio of stockholders' equity
to assets less separate accounts 17% 17%

The ratio of equity to assets less separate accounts has remained relatively constant. Net unrealized gains on available for sale securities, which
are included as a component of stockholders’ equity, increased $6.4 million at December 31, 2007 following a $16.2 million decrease at
December 31, 2006.

The Company’s statutory equity exceeds the minimum capital deemed necessary to support its insurance business, as determined by the risk
based capital calculations and guidelines established by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. The maximum stockholder
dividends that can be paid out of stockholders’ equity in 2008 without prior approval of the Missouri Director of Insurance are $59.6 million - the
statutory gain from operations at year-end 2007.

Stockholders’ equity per share, or book value, equaled $58.17 for year-end 2007, a 1% increase for the year. The Company has defined
contribution plans for employees and agents whereby they may purchase shares of Company stock. Also, the Company makes contributions to
these plans through the purchase of Company stock. The purchases and sales of Company stock for these purposes are handled as purchases and
sales of treasury stock. Accordingly, in 2007, the benefit plans purchased 140,240 treasury stock shares for $6.7 million (2006 – 82,191 shares for
$4.2 million) and sold 140,121 treasury stock shares for $6.3 million (2006 – 24,030 for $1.1 million).

The stock repurchase program was extended by the Board of Directors through January 2009 to permit the purchase of up to one million of the
Company’s shares on the open market, which would represent approximately 8% of the shares currently outstanding. During 2007, the Company
repurchased 90,341 shares of its common stock at a total cost of $4.1 million. The Company purchased 4,976 shares for $0.2 million in 2006. No
shares were purchased under this program in 2005.
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On January 28, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.27 per share that was paid February 12, 2008 to stockholders of
record as of February 7, 2008. On January 29, 2007, the Board of Directors declared two dividends, including a quarterly dividend of $0.27 per
share and a special, one-time dividend of $2.00 per share. Both dividends, totaling $26.9 million, were paid on February 13, 2007 to
shareholders of record as of February 8, 2007.

Current legislative activities are not expected to have a significant impact on the ongoing operations of the Company

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes (in millions) the Company’s information about contractual obligations by due date and expiration date as of
December 31, 2007. Contractual obligations of the Company are those obligations fixed by agreement as to dollar amount and date of payment.
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Less than After
Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years

Borrowings (1) $     10.4 $   10.4 $ - $ - $ -
Operating lease obligations (2)       3.5     1.8       1.6        0.1 -
Purchase obligations (3)       0.9     0.9 - - -
Mortgage loan commitments -
and other investments (4)      10.5    10.5 - - -

Annuity certain contracts (5)      66.7    14.1 22.4 15.9 14.3
Insurance liabilities (6) 2,939.2  327.2     631.4     589.2   1,391.4

Total contractual obligations $ 3,031.2 $  364.9 $     655.4 $     605.2 $   1,405.7

(1) Borrowings include short-term debt as described in the previous section – Debt and short-term borrowing.

(2) As a lessee, the Company leases its mainframe computer and certain related support equipment. The Company is also a lessee of an
office building with a 20-year lease that began in 1989 with two five-year renewal options. In 1998, the Company assigned the interest
in the lease to a third-party for the remainder of the lease period.

(3) Purchase obligations include contracts where the Company has a non-cancelable commitment to purchase goods and services.

(4) Mortgage loan commitments to provide funding to originate commercial mortgage loans. Mortgage loan commitments generally do
not extend beyond 90 days. Other investments are primarily commitments for real estate investments.

(5) Annuity certain contracts are those insurance liabilities (included in future policyholder benefits and policyholder contract balances),
which do not have life contingencies and have scheduled payments. Annuity certain contracts without life contingencies consist of
single premium immediate annuities, supplementary contracts and structured settlements.

(6) Insurance liabilities consist primarily of future policyholder benefits and policyholder contract balances for which the timing of cash
flows is uncertain and which have life contingencies. The schedule of payments for these liabilities can vary significantly because of
the uncertainty of the timing of cash flows, which depend upon insurable events or policyholder surrenders.
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Item 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company holds a diversified portfolio of investments that includes cash, bonds, preferred stocks, mortgage-backed securities, commercial
mortgages and real estate. Each of these investments is subject, in varying degree, to market risks that can affect their return and their fair value.
A majority of these assets are debt instruments of corporations or U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE) and are considered fixed
income investments. Thus, the primary market risks affecting the Company’s portfolio are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk arises from the price sensitivity of investments to changes in interest rates. Coupon and dividend income represent the greatest
portion of an investment’s total return for most fixed income instruments in stable interest rate environments. The changes in the fair market price
of such investments are inversely related to changes in market interest rates. As interest rates fall, the coupon and dividend streams of existing
fixed rate investments become more valuable and market values rise. As interest rates rise, the opposite effect occurs.

The net unrealized gain on the Company’s investment portfolio increased in 2007, primarily due to decreasing interest rates. At year-end, the fair
value of the securities exceeded its book value by $13.2 million.

Due to the complex nature of interest rate movements and their uneven effects on the value of fixed income investments, the Company uses
sophisticated computer programs to help consider potential changes in the value of the portfolio. Assuming that changes occur equally over the
entire term structure of interest rates or yield curve, it is estimated that a 100 basis point increase in rates would translate to a $138.4 million loss
of fair value for the $2.7 billion securities portfolio. Conversely, a 100 basis point rate decrease would translate to a $134.1 million increase in
fair value.
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Market changes rarely follow a linear pattern in one direction for any length of time. Within any diversified portfolio, an investor will likely find
embedded options, both puts and calls, that change the structure of the cash flow stream. Mortgage-backed securities are particularly sensitive to
interest rate changes. As long-term interest rates fall, homeowners become more likely to refinance their mortgage or move up to a larger home,
causing a prepayment of the outstanding mortgage principal, which must then be reinvested at a lower rate. Should interest rates rise suddenly,
prepayments expected by investors may decrease, extending the duration of a mortgage pool. This represents a further interest rate risk to
investors.

As interest rates rise, policyholders may become more likely to surrender policies or to borrow against cash values, often to meet sudden needs
in an inflationary environment or to invest in higher yielding opportunities elsewhere. This risk of disintermediation may force the Company to
liquidate parts of its portfolio at a time when the fair value of fixed income investments is falling. If interest rates fall, the Company may also be
forced to invest new cash receipts at levels below the minimum guaranteed rates payable to policyholders, eroding profit margins. The Company
can usually adapt to small sudden changes in interest rates or even large changes that occur over longer periods of time. However, cash flow may
increase or decrease over the course of the business cycle. Therefore, the Company takes steps to ensure that adequate liquidity is available to
meet obligations in a timely manner. To this end, the Company utilizes an asset/liability management program, and the Company maintains lines
of credit with commercial banks and other short-term borrowing arrangements with financial institutions.

The majority of the Company’s investments are exposed to varying degrees of credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that the value of the investment
may decline due to deterioration in the financial strength of the issuer and that the timely or ultimate payment of principal or interest might not
occur. A default by an issuer usually involves some loss of principal to the investor. Losses can be mitigated by timely sales of affected
securities or by active involvement in a restructuring process. However, there can be no assurance that the efforts of an investor will lead to
favorable outcomes in a bankruptcy or restructuring. Information about the write-down of investment securities is provided in the table of
Realized Investment Gains and Losses, under the section Consolidated Results of Operations in Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The Company mitigates credit risk by diversifying the investment portfolio across a broad range of issuers, investment sectors and security
types, and by limiting the amount invested in any particular entity. With the exception of certain GSE’s, there is no exposure to any single
corporate issuer greater than one percent of assets on a book value basis. The Company also invests in securities collateralized by physical
assets. These securities can improve the likelihood of payment according to contractual terms and increase recovery amounts in the case of
bankruptcy or restructuring.

The Company currently holds $157.6 million of foreign bonds. The foreign securities do not expose the Company directly to foreign currency
risk, as the securities are denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, the foreign currency risk lies with the issuer of the securities and may expose
the issuer to fluctuations in the foreign currency market.

As market interest rates fluctuate, so will the value of the Company's investment portfolio and its stockholders' equity. At December 31, 2007,
the Company had an unrealized investment gain of $7.6 million (net of related taxes, and amounts allocable to policyholder account balances
and deferred acquisition costs), compared to $1.2 million at year-end 2006. This increase was primarily the result of lower interest rates.

Asset/Liability Management

Kansas City Life’s asset/liability management programs and procedures involve the monitoring of asset and liability durations for various product
lines, cash flow testing under various interest rate scenarios to evaluate the potential sensitivity of assets and liabilities to interest rate
movements, and the continuous rebalancing of assets and liabilities with respect to yield, risk, and cash flow characteristics.
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Kansas City Life believes its asset/liability management programs and procedures, along with certain product features, provide protection for the
Company against the effects of changes in interest rates under various scenarios.

Cash flows and effective durations of the asset and liability portfolios are measured at points in time and are affected by changes in the level and
term structure of interest rates, as well as changes in policyholder behavior. Further, durations are managed on an individual product level, and
an aggregate portfolio basis. As a result, differences typically exist between the duration, cash flows and yields of assets versus liabilities on an
individual portfolio and aggregate basis. The Company’s asset/liability management programs and procedures enable management to monitor the
changes, which
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have both positive and negative correlations among certain portfolios, and to make adjustments to asset mix, liability crediting rates and product
terms so as to manage risk and profitability over time.

The Company performs cash flow scenario testing through models of its in-force business. These models reflect specific product characteristics
and include assumptions based on current and anticipated experience regarding the relationships between short-term and long-term interest rates
(i.e., the slope of the yield curve), credit spreads, market liquidity and other factors, including policyholder behavior in certain market
conditions. In addition, these models include asset cash flow projections, reflecting interest payments, sinking fund payments, principal
payments, bond calls and mortgage prepayments.

The Company has a risk that the asset or liability portfolio performance may differ from forecasted results as a result of unforeseen economic
circumstances, estimates or assumptions that prove incorrect, unanticipated policyholder behavior or other factors. The result of such deviation
of actual versus expected performance could include excess or insufficient liquidity in future periods. Excess liquidity, in turn, could result in
reduced profitability on one or more product lines. Insufficient liquidity could result in the need to generate liquidity through borrowing, asset
sales or other means. The Company believes that adherence to its asset/liability management programs will provide sufficient liquidity to enable
it to fulfill its obligation to pay benefits under its various insurance and deposit contracts. On a historical basis, the Company has not needed to
liquidate assets to ensure sufficient cash flows. The Company maintains borrowing lines on a secured and unsecured basis to provide additional
liquidity, if needed.

The Company markets certain variable products. The policyholder assumes essentially all the investment earnings risk for the portion of the
account balance invested in the separate accounts. However, the Company assesses certain charges based on the policy account values and
changes to the account values can affect the Company's earnings. The portion of the policyholder's account balance invested in the fixed general
account, if any, is affected by many factors, including the absolute level of interest rates, relative performance of the fixed income and equity
markets, spreads between interest yields on investments and rates credited to the policyholder's accounts, and changes in consumer preferences.

Expected Cash Flows

The table below details the nature of expected cash flows from the securities portfolio, including the cash flows from mortgage-backed securities
pools, corporate bonds and commercial mortgages. Calls and prepayments represent the principal amount expected to return to the Company.
Total principal equals invested cash scheduled to return in each year, including maturities, calls, sinking funds and prepayments.
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Expected Cash Flows

(amounts in millions)

There- Total Fair
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 after Principal Value

Corporate bonds currently callable $ 5 $ - $ - $ 3 $ 3 $ 16 $ 27 $    27
Average interest rate 7.57 % - % - % 4.91 % 4.68 % 7.63 % 6.99 %
Mortgage-backed securities and CMO's 75 78 51 46 50 302 602       603
Average interest rate 4.83 % 5.14 % 5.42 % 5.60 % 5.56 % 5.75 % 5.50 %
All other securities 161 168 180 160 175 1,135 1,979    2,060
Average interest rate 5.28 % 5.60 % 5.56 % 6.00 % 5.72 % 6.26 % 6.00 %
Investment securities 241 246 231 209 228 1,453 2,608    2,690
Average interest rate 5.19 % 5.45 % 5.53 % 5.90 % 5.67 % 6.18 % 5.90 %
Mortgages 31 50 41 58 35 235 450       464
Average interest rate 6.82 % 6.81 % 7.18 % 6.95 % 6.74 % 6.30 % 6.59 %
Total $ 272 $ 296 $ 272 $ 267 $ 263 $ 1,688 $ 3,058 $ 3,154
Average interest rate 5.38 % 5.68 % 5.78 % 6.13 % 5.81 % 6.20 % 6.00 %
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31
2007 2006

ASSETS
Investments:

Fixed maturity securities available for sale, at fair value
(amortized cost: 2007 - $2,619,109; 2006 -
$2,718,960) $ 2,631,073 $ 2,719,439

Equity securities available for sale, at fair value
(cost: 2007 - $57,906; 2006 - $50,180) 59,149 52,351

Mortgage loans 450,148 472,019
Real estate 96,049 109,525
Policy loans 92,803 96,218
Short-term investments 36,522 41,037
Other investments - 3,182

Total investments 3,365,744  3,493,771

Cash 12,158 3,908
Accrued investment income 36,499 38,661
Deferred acquisition costs 217,512 220,595
Value of business acquired 73,517 82,769
Reinsurance receivables 162,340 158,231
Property and equipment 27,781 29,364
Other assets 36,164 29,747
Separate account assets 420,393 400,749

Total assets $  4,352,108 $  4,457,795

LIABILITIES
Future policy benefits $ 851,277 $ 853,102
Policyholder account balances 2,087,965 2,191,105
Policy and contract claims 31,742 32,188
Other policyholder funds 107,109 87,094
Notes payable 10,400 14,700
Income taxes 40,300 35,319
Other liabilities 118,521 159,234
Separate account liabilities 420,393 400,749

Total liabilities 3,667,707 3,773,491

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, par value $1.25 per share

Authorized 36,000,000 shares,
issued 18,496,680 shares 23,121 23,121

Additional paid in capital 30,244 25,852
Retained earnings 780,133 780,892
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (19,811) (25,118)
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Treasury stock, at cost (2007 - 6,731,643 shares;
2006 - 6,641,183 shares) (129,286) (120,443)

Total stockholders' equity 684,401 684,304

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 4,352,108 $ 4,457,795

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

REVENUES
Insurance revenues:
Premiums $ 175,460 $ 175,926 $ 179,566
Contract charges 111,422 114,496 114,745
Reinsurance ceded (54,988) (55,158) (55,808)

Total insurance revenues 231,894 235,264 238,503
Investment revenues:
Net investment income 190,405 196,280 194,608
Realized investment gains 5,426 5,621 6,113

Other revenues 11,499 11,349 10,312
Total revenues 439,224 448,514 449,536

BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Policyholder benefits 166,458 167,905 169,701
Interest credited to policyholder account balances 91,215 94,648 98,637
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs
and value of business acquired 40,333 42,311 43,058

Operating expenses 88,307 93,080 89,144
Total benefits and expenses 386,313 397,944 400,540

Income before income tax expense 52,911 50,570 48,996

Income tax expense 17,250 13,652 12,812

NET INCOME $ 35,661 $ 36,918 $ 36,184

Basic and diluted earnings per share:
Net income $ 3.01 $ 3.11 $ 3.03

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

COMMON STOCK, beginning and end of year $ 23,121 $ 23,121 $ 23,121

ADDITIONAL PAID IN CAPITAL
Beginning of year 25,852 25,063 24,279
Excess of proceeds over cost of treasury stock
sold 4,392 789 784

End of year 30,244 25,852 25,063

RETAINED EARNINGS
Beginning of year 780,892 756,807 733,499
Net income 35,661 36,918 36,184
Stockholder dividends of $3.08 per share

(2006 - $1.08; 2005 - $1.08) (36,420) (12,833) (12,876)

End of year 780,133 780,892 756,807

ACCUMULATED OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE

LOSS
Beginning of year (25,118) (8,406) 26,231
Other comprehensive income (loss) 5,307 (12,588) (34,637)
Adjustment to adopt SFAS 158 - (4,124) -

End of year (19,811) (25,118) (8,406)

TREASURY STOCK, at cost
Beginning of year (120,443) (116,366) (114,234)
Cost of 230,581 shares acquired

(2006 - 87,167 shares; 2005 - 50,689
shares) (10,799) (4,418) (2,458)

Cost of 140,121 shares sold
(2006 - 24,030 shares; 2005 - 22,930
shares) 1,956 341 326

End of year (129,286) (120,443) (116,366)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 684,401 $ 684,304 $ 680,219

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 35,661 $ 36,918 $ 36,184
Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of investment premium (discount) 6,279 7,908 10,493
Depreciation 3,323 4,223 4,247
Acquisition costs capitalized (28,642) (26,554) (28,092)
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs 31,073 34,919 35,608
Amortization of value of business acquired 9,260 7,392 6,821
Realized investment gains (4,060) (5,621) (6,113)
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Future policy benefits (1,825) (5,650) (3,252)
Policyholder account balances (21,356) (28,061) (17,275)
Income taxes payable and deferred 1,577 3,946 5,064

Other, net 1,607 (5,484) 637
Net cash provided 32,897 23,936 44,322

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments:

Fixed maturity securities (313,080) (274,662) (541,305)
Equity securities (15,249) (10,761) (5,690)
Mortgage loans (54,816) (72,569) (109,561)
Real estate (4,507) (45,006) (17,804)
Other investment assets - - (98)

Sales of investments:
Fixed maturity securities 168,259 94,717 175,317
Equity securities 4,583 5,078 6,296
Real estate 22,457 18,778 33,267
Other investment assets 7,930 9,213 29,055

Maturities and principal paydowns of investments:
Fixed maturity securities 198,224 279,010 394,366
Equity securities 2,806 7,175 9,026
Mortgage loans 58,405 59,120 82,414

Net additions to property and equipment (969) (2,028) (1,019)
Proceeds from sale of non insurance affiliate 10,104 - -

Net cash provided 84,147 68,065 54,264

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings 359,680 67,001 45,315
Repayment of borrowings (363,980) (79,583) (110,252)
Deposits on policyholder account balances 205,767 202,950 242,613
Withdrawals from policyholder account balances (294,799) (273,816) (245,927)
Net transfers from separate accounts 11,706 16,451 5,213
Change in other deposits 13,703 (17,074) (14,565)
Cash dividends to stockholders (36,420) (12,833) (12,876)
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Net acquisition of treasury stock (4,451) (3,288) (1,348)
Net cash used  (108,794)  (100,192) (91,827)

Increase (decrease) in cash 8,250 (8,191) 6,759
Cash at beginning of year 3,908 12,099 5,340

Cash at end of year $ 12,158 $ 3,908 $ 12,099

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
-
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KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(amounts in thousands, except share data)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business

Kansas City Life Insurance Company (the Company) is a Missouri domiciled stock life insurance company which, with its subsidiaries, is
licensed to sell insurance products in 49 states and the District of Columbia. The Company offers a diversified portfolio of individual insurance,
annuity and group products through three life insurance companies: Kansas City Life Insurance Company (Kansas City Life) the parent
company, and wholly owned subsidiaries Sunset Life Insurance Company of America (Sunset Life) and Old American Insurance Company (Old
American).

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) and include the accounts of Kansas City Life and its subsidiaries, principally Sunset Life and Old American. All
material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Certain amounts in prior years have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation. Upon the adoption of SFAS 158, the
Company recorded the related $4.1 million (net of tax) adjustment as a component of other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31,
2006. The Company has since determined that this adjustment should have been presented as an adjustment of the ending balance of
accumulated other comprehensive loss. The accompanying Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the year ended December 31,
2006 and Note 12 – Comprehensive Income have been modified to reflect this presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions relating to the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. These estimates are inherently subject to change and actual
results could differ from these estimates. Included among the material (or potentially material) reported amounts and disclosures that require
extensive use of estimates are the fair value of certain invested assets, deferred acquisition costs, value of business acquired, future policy
benefits, policy and contract claim liabilities and the valuation allowance on deferred income tax assets.

Business Changes
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On January 23, 2006 the Company entered into a definitive agreement to sell its bank subsidiary, Generations Bank, for $10.1 million in cash to
Brooke Corporation. On January 8, 2007, the Company completed the sale of Generations Bank after receiving regulatory approval from the
Office of Thrift Supervision. The gain on the sale was $1.9 million and is included in realized investment gains. The bank subsidiary and the
results of operations were not material to the financial statements of the Company and are not disclosed separately.

In 2006, the Company entered into a Master General Agent and Marketing Agreement with American Republic Insurance Company (American
Republic) under which American Republic agents market Kansas City Life’s insurance products. Sales under this agreement are reflected in the
Individual Insurance segment.

Investments

Investment income is recognized when earned. Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on the basis of specific
security identification recorded on the trade date. Securities available for sale are stated at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses, net of
adjustments to deferred acquisition costs (DAC), value of business acquired (VOBA), policyholder account balances and deferred income taxes,
are reported as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders' equity. The adjustments to DAC and VOBA
represent changes in the amortization of DAC and VOBA that would have been required as a charge or credit to income had such unrealized
amounts been realized. The adjustment to policyholder account balances represents the increase from using a discount rate that would have been
required if such unrealized gains had been realized and the proceeds reinvested at current market interest rates, which were lower than the then
current effective portfolio rate.
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                                                        KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

The Company’s fair value of fixed maturity and equity securities are derived from external pricing sources, brokers, and internal matrices.
Approximately 94% of these investments are from external pricing services while 6% are derived from brokers and internal matrices. The
Company reviews and analyzes its securities on an ongoing basis to determine whether impairments exist that are other-than-temporary. Based
upon these analyses, specific security values are written down to fair value through earnings as a realized investment loss if the security's value
is considered to be an other-than-temporary impairment. Premiums and discounts on fixed maturity securities are amortized over the life of the
related security as an adjustment to yield using the effective interest method. See Note 2 – Investments for further details.

Investment income on mortgage-backed securities is initially based upon yield, cash flow, and prepayment assumptions at the date of purchase.
Subsequent revisions in those assumptions are recorded using the retrospective method, except for ARMs (adjustable rate mortgage-backed
securities) where the prospective method is used. Under the retrospective method the amortized cost of the security is adjusted to the amount that
would have existed had the revised assumptions been in place at the time of purchase. Under the prospective method, future cash flows are
estimated and interest income is recognized going forward using the new internal rate of return. The adjustments to amortized cost under both
methods are recorded as a charge or credit to net investment income.

Mortgage loans are stated at cost, adjusted for amortization of premium and accrual of discount, less a valuation reserve for probable losses. A
loan is considered impaired if it is probable that contractual amounts due will not be collected. The valuation reserve is based upon historical
impairment experience, including an estimate of probable impairment of any delinquent or defaulted loans. Such estimates are based upon the
value of the expected cash flows and the underlying collateral on a net realizable basis. Loans in foreclosure and loans considered to be impaired
are placed on a non-accrual status.

Real estate consists of directly owned investments and real estate joint ventures. Real estate that is directly owned is carried at depreciated cost.
Real estate joint ventures consist primarily of office buildings, unimproved land for future development and low income housing tax credit
(“LIHTC”) investments. Real estate joint ventures are consolidated where required or are valued at cost, adjusted for the Company’s equity in
earnings.

Policy loans are carried at cost, less principal payments received. Short-term investments are stated at cost, adjusted for amortization of premium
and accrual of discount.

Deferred Acquisition Costs

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC), principally agent commissions and other selling, selection and issue costs, which vary with and are directly
related to the production of new business, are capitalized as incurred. These deferred costs are then amortized in proportion to future premium
revenues or the expected future profits of the business, depending upon the type of product. Profit expectations are based upon assumptions of
future interest spreads, mortality margins, expense margins and policy and premium persistency experience. These assumptions involve
judgment and are compared to actual experience on an ongoing basis. If it is determined that the assumptions related to the profit expectations
for interest sensitive and variable insurance products should be revised, the impact of the change is reported in the current period’s income as an
unlocking adjustment. The DAC unlocking adjustment was $3.4 million for the year ended 2007 (2006 – $0.7 million; 2005 – $2.2 million) which
reduced the amortization of DAC. During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Old American segment reduced its amortization of DAC by $1.2
million. This adjustment, which is a correction of an understatement of the capitalization of DAC in prior periods, was not material to 2006 or
any prior period financial statements.

Edgar Filing: KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE CO - Form 10-K/A

85



DAC is reviewed on an ongoing basis to determine that the unamortized portion does not exceed the expected recoverable amounts. If it is
determined from emerging experience that the premium margins or gross profits are insufficient to amortize deferred acquisition costs, then the
asset will be adjusted downward with the adjustment recorded as an expense in the current period. No impairment adjustments have been
recorded in the years presented. The DAC asset is adjusted to reflect the impact of unrealized gains and losses on fixed maturity securities
available for sale, as described in the Investments section of Note 1.
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KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

The following table provides information about DAC at December 31.

2007 2006 2005

Balance at beginning of year $ 220,595
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